JOIN ZOOM MEETING:
https://us02web.zoom.us/i/83032452642

+1-646-558-8656
Meeting ID: 830 3245 2642

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 02, 2025

TOWN OF THOMPSON
-Regular Meeting Agenda-

THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD IN-PERSON
LOCATED AT TOWN HALL, 4052 STATE ROUTE 42,
MONTICELLO, NY 12701. THE MEETING WILL
ALSO BE STREAMED LIVE ON ZOOM: TO JOIN
PLEASE SEE TOWN WEBSITE AT:
WWW.THOMPSONNY.GOV

7:00 PM MEETING

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1) SACKETT LAKE SEWER DISTRICT EXT. NO. 6 — ARI JACOBS
2) ROCK HILL/EMERALD GREEN CONSOLIDATED SEWER DISTRICT PUMP STATION # 6 PROJECT

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES:
PUBLIC COMMENT

CORRESPONDENCE:

August 19, 2025 Regular Town Board Meeting

e Environmental Protection Agency: Notice Of Significant Non-Compliance & Response - Consolidated Rock Hill/Emerald

Green Sewer District

e Sullivan County Treasurer’s Office: 2"° Quarter Mortgage Tax Payment, Check #3448, Dated 08/15/25 for $235,950.55

e NYS Dept. of Taxation and Finance: Check # 10612078 Dated: 08/12/2025 in the amount of $3,332.00, Payable to Town of
Thompson — Additional NYS General Aid Payment

AGENDA ITEMS:

1) SACKETT LAKE SEWER DISTRICT EXT. NO. 6 — ARI JACOBS
A) NEGATIVE DECLARATION RESOLUTION UNDER SEQR
B) RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS IN RELATION TO PROPOSED EXTENSION
C) RESOLUTION APPROVING EXTENSION NO. 6 SUBJECT TO PERMISSIVE REFERENDUM

2 )JROCK HILL/EMERALD GREEN CONSOLIDATED SEWER DISTRICT PUMP STATION # 6 PROJECT
A) PUBLIC INTEREST ORDER & BOND RESOLUTION FOR FUNDING

3) REVIEW AND APPROVE: FINAL ORDER FOR EXTENSION NO. 3 OF CONSOLIDATED ROCK HILL-EMERALD
GREEN SEWER DISTRICT FOR CATSKILL VETERINARY SERVICES, LLC., SBL # 32.-1-14.

4) NEW EV CHARGERS:

A) REVIEW AND APPROVE: AGREEMENT WITH WOOD HOLLOW ENERGY GROUP FOR OPERATION &
MAINTENANCE OF NEW EV CHARGERS
B) AUTHORIZE SUBMITTAL FOR ELECTIVE PAY (TAX CREDIT) FOR NEW EV CHARGERS

5) WATER & SEWER DEPT.

A) PURCHASE REQUEST — 2025 CHEVROLET 4500 WITH UTILITY BODY

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that this Town Board meeting will be held in person and via videoconferencing, as permitted by
the NYS Open Meetings Law. The zoom invite is merely a courtesy and convenience to the public. If there is a disruption
in the ability of the zoom meeting to commence or even continue once a meeting has been commenced, the official

meeting of the Town Board shall continue in person without interruption.

Town Board Agenda
September 02, 2025
Page 1 of 2




6) APPOINT ANTHONY J. REIN AS SOLE ASSESSOR FOR THE STATUTORY (6) YEAR TERM BEGINNING
10/01/2025

7) DISCUSSION: SPECIAL MEETING FOR TOWN CLERK TO PRESENT 2026 TENTATIVE BUDGET TO THE TOWN
BOARD ‘

8) ESTABLISH DATE FOR TENTATIVE SPECIAL DISTRICT ASSESSMENT HEARING— TUESDAY, 10/07/25 @ 7:00PM
9) BILLS OVER $5,000.00

10) BUDGET TRANSFERS & AMENDMENTS

11) ORDER BILLS PAID

OLD BUSINESS
NEW BUSINESS

REPORTS: SUPERVISOR, COUNCILMEN, & DEPARTMENT HEADS
PUBLIC COMMENT

ADJOURN

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that this Town Board meeting will be held in person and via videoconferencing, as permitted by
the NYS Open Meetings Law. The zoom invite is merely a courtesy and convenience to the public. If there is a disruption
in the ability of the zoom meeting to commence or even continue once a meeting has been commenced, the official
meeting of the Town Board shall continue in person without interruption.

Town Board Agenda
September 02, 2025
Page 2 of 2



Sullivan Coun;

5 Lower Main S
Callicoon, NY

845-887-5200 Fa»

Affidavit of

State of New York

55;
County of Sullivan

Legal Notice

I, Fred W. Stabbert, ITT, being duly swc
Depose and say: That I am the Publisher
Sullivan County Democrat, a twice weekly
newspaper of general circulation publishe
Callicoon, County of Sullivan, State of Ne
York: and that a notice, of which the ann
is a printed copy, was duly published in
SSullivan County Democrat 8/22/25

o ot

Fred Wt’STabberf

Sworn to before me this 22nd da

; 7, /i
;4&‘ //gow_, ZL
Barbara A. Matos
Notary Public, State of Ne
No. #01MA617297
Qualified in Sullivan Cot
My commission expires on Auc

At a regular meeting of the Town Board of the Town
of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, held at the
Town Hall, in Monticello, New York, on the 19 th day -
of August, 2025, at 7:00 o'clock P.M., Prevailing Time.

PRESENT:
WILLIAM J. RIEBER, JR., Supervisor
SCOTT S. MACE, Councilman
MELINDA S. MEDDAUGH, Councilwoman
RYAN T. SCHOCK, Councilman

In the Matter of

Proposed Extension No. 6 of the SACKETT LAKE
SEWER DISTRICT in the Town of

Thompson, Sullivan County, New York.

X

WHEREAS, a Map, Plan and Report have been duly prepared in
such manner and in such detail as has heretofore been determined by
the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York,
relating to the Extension #6 of the Sackett Lake Sewer District within
said Town, to serve the area more particularly described in Schedule “A”
annexed hereto and made a part hereof, which area is located wholly
within the Town of Thompson; and WHEREAS, said Map, Plan and
Report was prepared on behalf of the Town, by MHE Engineerin%, DPC,
dated August 01, 2025, which engineers are duly licensed by the State of

New York, and which report and plan are on file in the office of the
Town Clerk for Rublic inspection; and

WHEREAS, the boundaries of the proposed extended district are
more fully set forth and described in Schedule “A” annexed hereto and
made a part hereof; and

EREAS, the improvement proposed for the said Sackett Lake

Sewer District, as extended, consists of providing a means by which Ari
Jacobs g /O Thompson Tax Map Parcel #56-1-32.54) may dispose of
sewage by becoming part of the said Sackett Lake Sewer District, and

WHEREAS, the entire amount to be expended for such improve-
ment, including but not limited to, costs of construction, engineering,
administrative and legal fees, shall be borne solely and entirely by the
said landowner, namely, Ari Jacobs, and

WHEREAS, the annual average cost for a typical single-family
residence with four (4) bedrooms would be Six Hundred Twenty-Nine
and 60/100 &$629.60) ollars, and

WHEREAS, it is now desired to call a Public Hearing for the
purpose of considering said Map, Plan and Report, and extending said
Sackett Lake Sewer District, and to hear all persons interested in the
subject thereof and concerning the same in accordance with the provi-
sions of Section 209-d of the Town Law;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY

ORDERED, by the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan

s SN

_ County, New York, as follows:

Section 1. That a meeting of the Town Board of the Town of
Thomgson, Sullivan County, New York, shall be held at the Town Hall,
4052 Route 42, Monticello, New York, in said Town, on the 2 nd day of
September, 2025, at 7:00 o'clock, P.M., Prevailing Time, to consider said
Map, Plan and Report, and to hear all persons interested in the subject
thereof concerning the same and to take such action thereon as is re-
quired by law.

Section 2. That a copy of this Order shall be published in the Sul-
livan County Democrat, the official newspaper of said Town, and posted
on the bulletin board maintained by the Town Clerk at the Town Hall in
accordance with the provisions of Section 209-d of the Town Law, such
Egblication sting to be not less than ten nor more than twenty days

fore the date designated for the hearing as aforesaid.

Section 3. This order shall take effect immediately.

Motion by: Councilwoman Melinda S. Meddaugh
Seconded by: Councilman Ryan T. Schock

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Order was duly put

to a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows:

WILLIAM J. RIEBER, JR. VOTING Aye
SCOTT S. MACE VOTING Aye

JOHN A. PAVESE VOTING Absent
MELINDA S. MEDDAUGH VOTING Aye
RYAN T. SCHOCK VOTING Aye

The order was théreupon declared duly adopted.
Schedule “A”
Sackett Lake Sewer District Ext. No. 6

Beginning at a point, being the northeast corner of Tax map parcel 56.-1-
32.54 and the southeast corner of tax map Earcel 56.-1-46.1, said corner
also being on the western boundary of Sacket Lake Road, County Route
45 {CR 45); Thence

1. Southerly, 125 feet more or less, along the western boundary Sackett
Lake Road {CR 45), to a point, being the northeastern corner of tax
map parcel 56.-1-32.51; thence

2, Westerly, 300.23 feet more or less along the northern boundary of tax
map parcel 56.-1-32.51 a point; thence

3. Northerly, 125 feet more or less, along the boundary of tax map parcel
56.-1-46.1 to a point, said point; thence

4. Easterly, 300 feet more or less, along the southern boundary of tax
map parcel 56.-1-46.1, to a point, said point being the southeastern
corner of tax map parcel 56.-1-46.1, and being located on the western
boundary of Old Sackett Road and also being the point of beginning;
Containing 0.861 acres more or less.

August 2025




State of New York
County of Sullivan

Legal Notice

I, Fred W. Stabbert, ITI, being duly sw
Depose and say: That I am the Publishe
Sullivan County Democrat, a twice week
newspaper of general circulation publisk

Sullivan Count

5 Lower Main St
Callicoon, NY

845-887-5200 Fax

Affidavit of

SS.

LEGAL NOTICE
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Town Board of the Town of
Thormpson, Sullivan County, New York, will meet at the Town Hall, in
Monticello, in said Town, on September 02, 2025, at 7:00 PM., Eastern
Time, for the purpose of conducting a public hearing relating to the
Eroposed increase and improvement of the facilities of the Consolidated

ock Hil/Emerald Green Sewer District, in said Town (the *District’),
consisting of rehabilitation or replacement of sewer mains and manholes,
lateral replacement and related site improvements, including incidental
expenses in.connection therewith, in said District, at an estimated max-
imum cost of $4,900,000, at'which time and place said Town Boaid wil
hear all persons interested in the subject thereof.

Such. cost shall be annuall agportioned, levied and collected
in said District in. the manner provided by law in an amount sufficient to
pay the principal and interest-on said bonds as the same become due.

The map, plan and report, including estimate of cost, relating to
this project is on the file in the Office of the Town Clerk where 1t is avail-
able for public inspection during normal business hours. ; ~

. An-environmental analysis has been prepared on béhalf of the
District pursuant to the regulations of the New York State Department
of Environmental Conservation promulgated pursuant to the State En-
vironmental Quality Review Act in connection with such increase and
improvement of the facilities of said District and it has been determined

" that such-increase and improvement of the facilities of said District wil

not result in any significant adverse environmental impacts.

Dated: Monticeflo, New York

August 19, 2025 >
' ‘ BY ORDER OF THE TOWN BOARD
OF THE TOWN OF THOMFSON,
SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW YORK
Kelly M. Murran, Deputy Town Clerk
135859 '

Callicoon, County of Sullivan, State of New
York; and that a notice, of which the annexed
is a printed copy, was duly published in
5Sullivan County Democrat 8/22/25

-

AY

'Fr‘ed WTSTabberT

II

Sworn to before me this 22™ day of August, 2025

4&(/,/{/40@& ﬁ

(ot

‘barbara A. Matos

Notary Public, State of New York
No. #01MA6172971
Qualified in Sullivan County
My commission expires on August 20, 2027



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Town Board of the Town of Thompson held at the
Town Hall, 4052 State Route 42, Monticello, New York and held remotely via Zoom on
August 19, 2025.

ROLL CALL:
Present: Supervisor William J. Rieber, Jr., Presiding
Councilwoman Melinda S. Meddaugh

Councilman Scott S. Mace

Councilman Ryan T. Schock DRAFT
Also Present: Marilee J. Calhoun, Town Clerk

Michael B. Mednick, Town Attorney

Melissa DeMarmels, Town Comptroller

Jill M. Weyer, Director of Community Development

Glenn Somers, Parks & Recreation Superintendent

Hayden Carnell, Highway Superintendent
James Carnell, Director of Buildings, Planning & Zoning

Present Via Zoom: None

Absent: John A. Pavese, Councilman
Kelly M. Murran, Deputy Town Clerk

REGULAR MEETING — CALL TO ORDER

Supervisor Rieber opened the meeting at 7:00 PM with the Pledge to the Flag. This
meeting was held in person and remotely via Videoconferencing streamed live on the
Zoom app, which is accessible to the public. The meeting is also being recorded for full
transcription purposes should it be required.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

On a motion made by Councilman Mace and seconded by Councilman Schock the
approval of the August 05, 2025 Regular Town Board Meeting minutes were approved
as presented.

Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh, and Mace
Nays 0
Absent 1 Pavese

PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment.

CORRESPONDENCE:
Supervisor Rieber reported on correspondence that was sent or received as follows:

e NYSDEC: Annual Compliance Inspection — Dillon Farms Sewer District —
Satisfactory Rating
Town Board Meeting

August 19, 2025
Page 1 of 21



o Sullivan County IDA: Transition of EPR benefits to Monticello Raceway
Management Inc. & Empire Resorts, Inc.

e NYS Dept. of Taxation and Finance: Check #09904145, Dated: 08/01/25 in the
amount of $601,259.54 — NYS Gaming Commission for Resorts World Catskill
Casino Distribution 1st Quarter Payment

e Charter Communications
Sullivan County General Fund Cannibis Revenue

AGENDA ITEMS:

1) RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT & FILE AUDIT REPORT/FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDING 12/31/2024 BY NUGENT & HAESSLER, P.C., CERTIFIED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 284 of the Year 2025.

Resolved, that the Audit Report and Financial Statements of the Town of Thompson
Fiscal Affairs for 01/01/2024 to 12/31/2024 prepared by Nugent & Haessler, P.C.,
Certified Public Accountants, hereby be accepted and filed with the Town Clerk.
Further be it Resolved, that the Town Clerk hereby be directed to publish Notice of the
Filing of the Report as required by law, forward copies to the Office of the State
Comptroller, NYS Justice Court Administration, and maintain a copy on file in the Office
of the Town Clerk.

Moved by: Councilwoman Meddaugh Seconded by: Councilman Mace
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Pavese, Meddaugh and Mace
Nays O

Absent 1 Pavese

2B) SEQR DETERMINATION: ROCK HILL/EMERALD GREEN CONSOLIDATED
SEWER DISTRICT PUMP STATION # 6
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 285 of the Year 2025.

At a regular meeting of the Town Board of the Town of
Thompson held at the Town Hall, 4052 Route 42,
Monticello, New York, on August 19, 2025

RESOLUTION FOR NEGATIVE DECLARATION UNDER SEQR

FOR EMERALD GREEN PUMP STATION #6 COLLECTION SYSTEM
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, WITHIN THE CONSOLIDATED ROCK
HILL/EMERALD GREEN SEWER DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the Town Board of the Town of Thompson declared itself lead agency
pursuant to Resolution dated July 15, 2025 in connection with the coordinated review of
the proposed unlisted action for the Emerald Green Pump Station #6 Collection System
Improvement Project, within the Consolidated Rock Hill/Emerald Green Sewer District;

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 2 of 21



and

WHEREAS, a Full Environmental Assessment Form has been filed in connection
with the proposed Project, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part of this
Resolution; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing shall be conducted in connection with the Project
financing on September 2, 2025, for the aforementioned Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Board of the Town of
Thompson determines that there are no negative environmental impacts that would be
caused as a result of the proceeding with the Emerald Green Pump Station #6 Collection
System Improvement Project, within the Consolidated Rock Hill/Emerald Green Sewer
District, with NYSEFC WIIA Grant; and

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, it is determined that the Town Board of the Town
of Thompson makes a negative declaration with regard to any environmental impacts
caused as a result of the proposed aforementioned Project.

Moved by: Councilman Scott S. Mace
Seconded by: Councilman Ryan T. Schock
Adopted the 19% day of August, 2025.

The members of the Town Board voted as follows:

Supervisor WILLIAM J. RIEBER, JR. Yes [X] No[ ]
Councilperson SCOTT S. MACE Yes [X] No[ ]
Councilman JOHN A. PAVESE Yes|[ ] No[ ] Absent
Councilwoman MELINDA S. MEDDAUGH Yes [X] No[ ]
Councilman RYAN T. SCHOCK Yes[X] No[ ]

2A) SET DATE FOR PUBLIC HEARING — 09/02/2025: ROCK HILL/EMERALD
GREEN CONSOLIDATED SEWER DISTRICT PUMP STATION # 6
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 286 of the Year 2025.

At a regular meeting of the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New
York, held at the Town Hall, in Monticello, New York, in said Town, on August 19, 2025, at
7:00 o'clock P.M., Eastern Time.

PRESENT:

Hon. William J. Rieber, Jr.
Supervisor

Hon. Melinda S. Meddaugh
Councilperson

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 3 of 21



Hon. John A. Pavese
Councilperson

Hon. Ryan T. Schock
Councilperson

Hon. Scott S. Mace
Councilperson

X

In the Matter of the Increase and Improvement

of the Facilities of the Consolidated

Rock Hilll Emerald Green Sewer District :

in the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County : ORDER CALLING PUBLIC HEARING
X

WHEREAS, the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York,
has had under consideration the increase and improvement of the facilities of the
Consolidated Rock HillEmerald Green Sewer District, in said Town (the “District”),
consisting of rehabilitation or replacement of sewer mains and manholes, lateral
replacement and related site improvements, including incidental expenses in connection
therewith; and;

WHEREAS, the District is each located entirely within said Town; and

WHEREAS, the Town Board of said Town has duly caused MHE Engineering, D.P.C.
to prepare a map, plan and report, including an estimate of cost, dated June 27, 2025,
relating to said increase and improvement of facilities in said Emerald Green and Rock Hill
Sewer Districts, which describes details of the project and the expected costs to be paid by

property owners in each Benefitted Sewer District; and

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 4 of 21



WHEREAS, such expected costs are projections, are subject to various
contingencies and, pursuant to law, may be further adjusted by the annual apportionment
of such costs by the Town Board between the District; and

WHEREAS, the estimated maximum cost of such increase and improvement of
facilities is determined to be $4,900,000; and

WHEREAS, to the extent not paid from user charges, such cost shall be annually
apportioned and assessed upon the several lots and parcels of land within the District after
taking into account the annual apportionment of such cost between the District pursuant to
Section 202-b paragraph 4 of the Town Law, in the manner provided by law, in an amount
sufficient to pay the principal and interest on bonds, notes or other obligations issued to
finance such cost as the same become due; and

WHEREAS, an environmental analysis was previously prepared pursuant to the
regulations of the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation promulgated
pursuant to the State Environmental Quality Review Act in connection with such increase
and improvement of the facilities of said District and it has been determined that such
increase and improvement of the facilities of said District and use will not result in any
significant environmental effects; and

WHEREAS, it is now desired to call a public hearing on said proposed increase and
improvement of facilities and the map, plan and report, including estimate of cost pursuant
to Section 202-b of the Town Law;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

ORDERED, by the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New

York, as follows:

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 5 of 21



Section1. A meeting of the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan
County, New York, will be held at the Town Hall, in Monticello, in said Town, on September
02, 2025, at 7:00 P.M., Eastern Time, for the purpose of conducting a public hearing on the
proposed increase and improvement of the facilities of said District in said Town, and the
plan and report, including estimate of cost, at which time and place said Town Board will
hear all persons interested in the subject thereof.

Section2.  The Town Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to cause a notice of

said public hearing to be published in the Sullivan County Democrat, a newspaper having

general circulation in said Town, and posted in the manner prescribed by law, which notice
shall be in substantially the following form, to-wit:
Section 3.  This order shall take effect immediately.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan
County, New York, will meet at the Town Hall, in Monticello, in said Town, on September
02, 2025, at 7:00 P.M., Eastern Time, for the purpose of conducting a public hearing relating
to the proposed increase and improvement of the facilities of the Consolidated Rock
Hill/Emerald Green Sewer District, in said Town (the “District”), consisting of rehabilitation
or replacement of sewer mains and manholes, lateral replacement and related site
improvements, including incidental expenses in connection therewith, in said District, at an
estimated maximum cost of $4,900,000, at which time and place said Town Board will hear

all persons interested in the subject thereof.

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 6 of 21



Such cost shall be annually apportioned, levied and collected in said District in the
manner provided by law in an amount sufficient to pay the principal and interest on said
bonds as the same become due.

The map, plan and report, including estimate of cost, relating to this project is on the
file in the Office of the Town Clerk where it is available for public inspection during normal
business hours.

An environmental analysis has been prepared on behalf of the District pursuant to
the regulations of the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
promulgated pursuant to the State Environmental Quality Review Act in connection with
such increase and improvement of the facilities of said District and it has been determined
that such increase and improvement of the facilities of said District will not result in any
significant adverse environmental impacts.

Dated: Monticello, New York
August 19, 2025

BY ORDER OF THE TOWN BOARD
OF THE TOWN OF THOMPSON,
SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW YORK

Kelly M. Murran, Deputy Town Clerk

Motion by: Councilman Mace Seconded by: Councilman Schock
The question of the adoption of the foregoing order was duly put to a vote on roll call,

which resulted as follows:
William J. Rieber, Jr., Supervisor VOTING Aye

Melinda S. Meddaugh, Councilperson VOTING Aye

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 7 of 21



John A. Pavese, Councilperson VOTING Absent
Ryan T. Schock, Councilperson VOTING Aye

Scott S. Mace, Councilperson VOTING Aye

The order was thereupon declared duly adopted.

3) SACKETT LAKE SEWER EXTENSION NO. 06 — ARI JACOBS
A) ACCEPT MAP, PLAN & REPORT
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 287 of the Year 2025.

Resolved, that the Town Board of the Town of Thompson hereby accepts the Map, Plan
& Report completed by MHE Engineering, D.P.C. Professional Engineers on behalf of
the Town for Thompson Sackett Lake Sewer Extension No. 06, Dated: 08/01/2025.

Moved by: Councilman Mace Seconded by: Councilwoman Meddaugh
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

B) SET DATE FOR PUBLIC HEARING-09/02/2025
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 288 of the Year 2025.

At a regular meeting of the Town Board of the Town of Thompson,
Sullivan County, New York, held at the Town Hall, in Monticello, New York,
on the 19" day of August, 2025, at 7:00 o'clock P.M., Prevailing Time.

PRESENT:

WILLIAM J. RIEBER, JR., Supervisor
SCOTT S. MACE, Councilman

MELINDA S. MEDDAUGH, Councilwoman
RYAN T. SCHOCK, Councilman

X

In the Matter of
Proposed Extension No. 6 of the SACKETT LAKE
SEWER DISTRICT in the Town of

Thompson, Sullivan County, New York.
X

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 8 of 21



WHEREAS, a Map, Plan and Report have been duly prepared in such manner and
in such detail as has heretofore been determined by the Town Board of the Town of
Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, relating to the Extension #6 of the Sackett Lake
Sewer District within said Town, to serve the area more particularly described in Schedule
“A” annexed hereto and made a part hereof, which area is located wholly within the Town
of Thompson; and

WHEREAS, said Map, Plan and Report was prepared on behalf of the Town, by
MHE Engineering, DPC, dated August 01, 2025, which engineers are duly licensed by
the State of New York, and which report and plan are on file in the office of the Town
Clerk for public inspection; and

WHEREAS, the boundaries of the proposed extended district are more fully set
forth and described in Schedule “A” annexed hereto and made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, the improvement proposed for the said Sackett Lake Sewer District,
as extended, consists of providing a means by which Ari Jacobs (T/O Thompson Tax Map
Parcel #56-1-32.54) may dispose of sewage by becoming part of the said Sackett Lake
Sewer District, and

WHEREAS, the entire amount to be expended for such improvement, including
but not limited to, costs of construction, engineering, administrative and legal fees, shall
be borne solely and entirely by the said landowner, namely, Ari Jacobs, and

WHEREAS, the annual average cost for a typical single-family residence with four
(4) bedrooms would be Six Hundred Twenty-Nine and 60/100 ($629.60) Dollars, and

WHEREAS, it is now desired to call a Public Hearing for the purpose of considering

said Map, Plan and Report, and extending said Sackett Lake Sewer District, and to hear

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 9 of 21



all persons interested in the subject thereof and concerning the same in accordance with
the provisions of Section 209-d of the Town Law;
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY

ORDERED, by the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New
York, as follows:

Section 1. That a meeting of the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan
County, New York, shall be held at the Town Hall, 4052 Route 42, Monticello, New York,
in said Town, on the 2" day of Septembe.r, 2025, at 7:00 o'clock, P.M., Prevailing Time,
to consider said Map, Plan and Report, and to hear all persons interested in the subject
thereof concerning the same and to take such action thereon as is required by law.

Section 2. That a copy of this Order shall be published in the Sullivan County
Democrat, the official newspaper of said Town, and posted on the bulletin board
maintained by the Town Clerk at the Town Hall in accordance with the provisions of
Section 209-d of the Town Law, such publication posting to be not less than ten nor more
than twenty days before the date designated for the hearing as aforesaid.

Section 3. This order shall take effect immediately.

Motion by: Councilwoman Melinda S. Meddaugh
Seconded by: Councilman Ryan T. Schock
The question of the adoption of the foregoing Order was duly put to a vote on roll

call, which resulted as follows:

WILLIAM J. RIEBER, JR. VOTING Aye
SCOTT S. MACE VOTING Aye
JOHN A. PAVESE VOTING Absent

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 10 of 21



MELINDA S. MEDDAUGH VOTING Aye
RYAN T. SCHOCK VOTING Aye

The order was thereupon declared duly adopted.

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 11 of 21



Smﬁ it A i
Sackett Lake Sewer Distrit Ext. No. 6 August 2025

0 '

Beginning at a point, being the northeast comer of Tax map parcel 56.-1-32.54 and the southeast comer
of tax map parcel 56.-1:46.1,said comer also being on the western boundary of Sacket Lake Road,
County Route 45 {CR 45); Thence

1. Southerly, 125 feet more or less, along the western boundary Sackett Lake Road (CR 45), to3
point, being the northeastern comer of tax map parcel 56.-1-32.51; thence

2, Westerly, 300,23 feet more orfess alongthe northern boundary o ta map parcel 56.-131.51 a
point; thence

3. Northerly, 125 feet more orless, along the boundary of tax map parcel56.-1-46.1 to & poin,
said point; thence

4, Easterly, 300 feet more or less, along the southern boundary of tax map parcel 56.-1-46.1,to
point, said point being the southeastern comer of tax map parcel 56.-1-46.1, and being located
on the western boundary of Old Sackett Road and also being the point of beginning; Containing
0.861 acres more or lss,

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 12 of 21



4) MELODY LAKE WELLHOUSE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT:
A) APPROVE & AUTHORIZE — MHE ENGINEERING INV # 23581

5,019.60
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 289 of the Year
2025.
MHE Engineering $5,019.60 Total Cost

Invoice # 23581 — Project 22-723 Melody Lake Improvements for Services
through 06/30/2025

Moved by: Councilman Mace Seconded by: Councilman Schock
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Meddaugh, Schock, and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

B) APPROVE & AUTHORIZE - MILLER HYDROGEOLOGIC INC.
APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT — INV# 25-012 - $14,321.99
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 290 of the Year 2025
Resolved, that the application for Payment in the amount of $14,321.99 with
Miller Hydrogeologic Inc., Invoice # 25-012 for the Melody Lake Wellhouse
Improvement Project hereby be approved and the Town Supervisor hereby be
authorized to execute said application for payment.
Moved by: Councilwoman Meddaugh  Seconded by: Councilman Schock
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh and Mace
Nays 0
Absent 1 Pavese

C) APPROVE & AUTHORIZE - RURAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT - USDA
FORM E FOR PAYMENT #2 $19,341.59

The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 291 of the Year

2025.

Resolved, that the application for Payment # 3 in the amount of $19,341.59 with
Rural Development Project — USDA Form E for the Melody Lake Wellhouse
Improvement Project hereby be approved and the Town Supervisor hereby be
authorized to execute said project budget/cost certification for payment.
Moved by: Councilwoman Meddaugh  Seconded by: Councilman Mace
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh and Mace

Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

5) FRASER RESORT/GIBBER HOLDINGS AGREEMENTS:
(JK EXPEDITING, LLC.)
A) WATER WORKS AGREEMENT
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 292 of the Year 2025.

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 13 of 21



Resolved, that the Town Board of the Town of Thompson hereby approves and
authorizes the Town Supervisor to execute and enter into the agreement between
the Town of Thompson and YJ Estates, LLC. for the formation of Gibber
Holdings/Fraser Resort Water Works Corp.

Moved by: Councilman Mace Seconded by: Councilman Schock

ROLL CALL
WILLIAM J. RIEBER, JR., SUPERVISOR VOTING AYE
MELINDA S. MEDDAUGH, COUNCILWOMAN VOTING AYE
JOHN A. PAVESE, COUNCILMAN VOTING ABSENT
RYAN T. SCHOCK, COUNCILMAN VOTING AYE
SCOTT S. MACE, COUNCILMAN VOTING AYE

B) SEWER WORKS AGREEMENT
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 293 of the Year 2025.
Resolved, that the Town Board of the Town of Thompson hereby approves and
authorizes the Town Supervisor to execute and enter into the agreement between
the Town of Thompson and YJ Estates, LLC. for the formation of Gibber
Holdings/Fraser Resort Sewer Works Corp.

Moved by: Councilman Schock Seconded by: Councilwoman Meddaugh
ROLL CALL

WILLIAM J. RIEBER, JR., SUPERVISOR VOTING AYE

MELINDA S. MEDDAUGH, COUNCILWOMAN VOTING AYE

JOHN A. PAVESE, COUNCILMAN VOTING ABSENT

RYAN T. SCHOCK, COUNCILMAN VOTING AYE

SCOTT S. MACE, COUNCILMAN VOTING AYE

C) DEVELOPERS AGREEMENT

The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 294 of the Year 2025.
Resolved, that the Town Board hereby approves the Developer's Agreement
between YJ Estates, LLC. and the Town of Thompson for the Fraser Resort
Project on Ranch Road, Thompsonville for site, restoration and infrastructure
work. Further Be It Resolved, that the Town Supervisor hereby be authorized to
execute said agreement as presented. A fully executed copy will be filed in the
Town Clerk’s Office and available for review upon request.

Motion by: Councilwoman Meddaugh Seconded by: Councilman Mace
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Meddaugh, Schock and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 14 of 21



6) HAMASPIK RESORT MODIFICATION: REVISED LAYOUT FOR KOLOSHITZ
WAY, ROCK HILL, NY SBL#'s 35.-1-6, 35.-7.1, 35.-7.2, & 35.-7.4
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 295 of the Year 2025.

Resolved, that upon the revised request of Hamaspik Resort and approval of the
Sullivan County Information Technology Services Systems the (1) roadway located
within the private community known as Hamaspik Resort is adopted as indicated on the
provided REVISED map hereby be named as follows: Koloshitz Way, Rock Hill, NY, SBL
# ‘s 35.-1-6, 35.-7.1, 35.-7.2, & 35.-7.4. Further Be It Resolved, that the Town Clerk is
hereby directed to notify the Sullivan County E911 Control Center of said change and
request that all property owners/residents hereby be notified accordingly.

Motion by: Councilwoman Meddaugh Seconded by: Councilman Schock
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh, and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

7) ROTARY REQUEST: USE TOWN HALL PARKING LOT FOR FOOD DRIVE ~
SATURDAY 9/20/25
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 296 of the Year 2025.

Resolved, that the Monticello Rotary Club hereby be authorized to utilize the Town Hall
Parking Lot for the purpose of sponsoring/holding a Food Drive to be held on Saturday,
September 201", 2025.

Moved by: Councilman Mace Seconded by: Councilman Schock
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

8) REVIEW & AWARD BIDS: DIESEL, #2 HEATING FUEL, KEROSENE, & GASOLINE
OPENED 07/31/2025 AT 2PM (1 YEAR CONTRACT WITH OPTION OF 1 YEAR

EXTENSION)

The Town opened bids for Diesel Fuel, #2 Fuel Oil, Kerosene and Unleaded Gasoline,
which were opened and read on 07/31/2025 at 2PM. A copy of the bid results was
provided to the Town Board for their review. There were (3) bids received in as follows:

1) County Petroleum Products, Inc.
Undyed Uitra Low Sulfur Diesel
Journal Price per Gallon $2.6472
Bid per Gallon over Journal (+.25)
Total Bid $2.8972
#2 Fuel Oil
Journal Price per Gallon $2.62265
Bid per Gallon over Journal (+.25)
Total Bid $2.87265
Kerosene
Journal Price per Gallon $3.018

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 15 of 21



Bid per Gallon over Journal (+.75)
Total Bid $3.768
Unleaded Gasoline
Journal Price per Gallon $2.09625
Bid per Galion over Journal (+.30)
Total Bid $2.39625
2) Jus-Sar Fuel, Inc. dba Black Bear Fuel & Resnick Energy *
Undyed Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel
Journal Price per Gallon $2.6472
Bid per Gallon over Journal (+.248)
Total Bid $2.8952
#2 Fuel Oil
Journal Price per Gallon $2.6227
Bid per Gallon over Journal (+.277)
Total Bid $2.8997
Kerosene
Journal Price per Gallon $3.018
Bid per Gallon over Journal (+.75)
Total Bid $3.768
Unleaded Gasoline
Journal Price per Gallon $2.0963
Bid per Gallon over Journal (+.248)
Total Bid $2.3443

3) Mirabito Energy Products
Undyed Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel
Journal Price per Gallon $2.6472
Bid per Gallon over Journal (+.1670)
Total Bid $2.8142
#2 Fuel Oil
Journal Price per Gallon $2.6227
Bid per Gallon over Journal (+.1760)
Total Bid $2.7987
Kerosene
Journal Price per Gallon $3.0180
Bid per Gallon over Journal (+.3600)
Total Bid $3.3780
Unleaded Gasoline
Journal Price per Gallon $2.0963
Bid per Gallon over Journal (+.2776)
Total Bid $2.3239

Highway Superintendent Hayden Carnell reviewed all bids and is recommending that
the bid for all (4) Fuel Products be awarded to Jus-Sar Fuel, Inc. (DBA Black Bear
Fuel). Jus-Sar Fuel, Inc. (DBA Black Bear Fuel) is the second lowest bidder.

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 16 of 21



Superintendent Carnell said that the low bidder does not meet the bid specifications
requiring a facility within the appropriate distance.

The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 297 of the Year 2025.

Resolved, that the bid of Jus-Sar Fuel, Inc. dba Black Bear Fuel and Resnick Energy for
Diesel Fuel, #2 Fuel Oil, Unleaded Gasoline and Kerosene, in the amount as per the
attached, is hereby accepted, and the Town Clerk is hereby directed to notify the
successful bidder of the award thereof.

Motion by: Councilman Schock Seconded by: Councilwoman Meddaugh
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

9) THOMPSON DRAFT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: SET DATE FOR PUBLIC
HEARING, 09/16/2025

A draft timeline was presented for the adoption of the Updated Comprehensive Plan.

The next step is to accept the Draft Plan and set a public hearing to receive comments

on the Draft. Ms. Budrock of Delaware Engineering will be present at the 09/16/2025

Town Board Meeting to present the Draft.

The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 298 of the Year 2025.
TO BE IMPORTED

Motion by: Councilwoman Meddaugh Seconded by: Councilman Mace
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

10) AUTHORIZE APPLICATION TO NY SWIMS ROUND 2 GRANT PROGRAM
Governor Hochul announced the availability of $53 million for a second round of New
York Statewide Investment in more Swimming (NY Swims) to construct, renovate, or
improve swimming pools statewide.

The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 299 of the Year 2025.
Resolved, that the Town Board of the Town of Thompson hereby authorizes
completion and submittal of an 80%/20% Matching Grant Application to the NYS
Office of Parks, Recreation & Historic Preservation and the Dormitory Authority of the
State of New York for grant funding through the NY Statewide Investment in More
Swimming (NY Swims) Program towards installation of a new pool located at the East
Mongaup River Town Park and

Be It Resolved, that the Town Board commits to using Park Fees and In-Kind Services
to complete the project and commit to the $500,000.00 local match as required by the
grant and

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 17 of 21



Further Be It Resolved, that the Town Supervisor hereby be authorized to execute
said Grant Application for submittal by the application deadline of October 30, 2025.

Moved by: Councilman Schock Seconded by: Councilwoman Meddaugh
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh, and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

11) BILLS OVER $5,000.00 - WATER & SEWER DEPT.

The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 300 of the Year 2025.
MHE Engineering $10,000.00 Total Cost
Invoice # 23583 — Engineering Services for engineering services for Design & Bidding
of the Sackett Lake Sewer | & | Improvements (C3-5378-08-00)

Moved by: Councilman Mace Seconded by: Councilman Schock
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh, and Mace
Nays O

Absent 1 Pavese

The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 301 of the Year 2025.
MHE Engineering $15,000.00 Total Cost
Invoice # 23579 — Engineering Services for engineering services for Design & Bidding
of the Harris SD PS Replacement Project — Pump Stations Harris & Old 17

Moved by: Councilman Mace Seconded by: Councilman Schock
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh, and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 302 of the Year 2025.
MHE Engineering $10,000.00 Total Cost
Invoice # 23580 — Engineering Services for engineering services for Design & Bidding
of the Harris SD PS Replacement Project — Pump Stations Benmoche & Racetrack

Moved by: Councilman Mace Seconded by: Councilman Schock
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh, and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 303 of the Year 2025.
MHE Engineering $10,000.00 Total Cost
Invoice # 23582 — Engineering Services for engineering services for Design & Bidding
of the Emerald Green Sewer District PS Improvements (C3-5378-05-00)

Moved by: Councilman Mace Seconded by: Councilman Schock
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh, and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

BILLS OVER $5,000.00 - HIGHWAY DEPT.
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 304 of the Year 2025.

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 18 of 21




Winter Equipment Company $13,595.03 Total Cost
Invoice # 64273 — For snow plow edges, purchased before annual price increase.

Moved by: Councilman Mace Seconded by: Councilman Schock
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh, and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 305 of the Year 2025.

Robert Green $60,747.00 Total Cost
Invoice # 048482 — For New Chevy Express Van with Utility Body.
Moved by: Councilman Mace Seconded by: Councilman Schock
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh, and Mace

Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

12) BUDGET TRANSFERS & AMENDMENTS
There were no budget transfers and amendments.

13) ORDER BILLS PAID
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 306 of the Year 2025.

Resolved, that all regular bills for the course of the month, which have been properly
audited be approved for payment. A complete list of the regular bills as identified can
be found appended to these minutes as per attached.
Moved by: Councilwoman Meddaugh  Seconded by: Councilman Schock
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh, and Mace

Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

OLD BUSINESS:
APPOINTMENT: TOWN ASSESSOR — ANTHONY J. REIN
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 307 of the Year 2025.

Resolved, that Anthony J. Rein hereby be appointed to the position of Sole Assessor to fill the
unexpired term of Van B. Krzywicki for the term ending 09/30/2025, according to NYS Municipal
Law subject to all necessary certifications and qualifications set forth by NYS Office of Real
Property Tax Services.

Motion by: Councilman Schock Seconded by: Councilwoman Meddaugh
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

REPORTS: SUPERVISOR, COUNCILMEN, & DEPARTMENT HEADS
Supervisor William J. Rieber, Jr.
¢ No additional items reported upon.

! ATTACHMENT: ORDER BILLS PAID
Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 19 of 21



Councilwoman Meddaugh
e MONTICELLO ELKS - REQUESTING USE OF THE EAST MONGAUP RIVER

PARK FOR A SOCCER FALL SHOOT OUT EVENT
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 308 of the Year
2025.

Resolved, that the Monticello Elks Club hereby be authorized to utilize the East
Mongaup River Park for the purpose of sponsoring/holding a Soccer Shoot Out Event
subject to receipt of the appropriate Certificates of Insurance and scheduling.
Moved by: Councilman Schock Seconded by: Councilman Mace
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh, and Mace

Nays 0

Absent 1 Pavese

Comptrolier DeMarmels
¢ The current water billing program is BAS which was purchased by Edmunds Gov

Tech. Edmunds is no longer going to support BAS. They have a new billing
system called MCSJ. Director Weyer and Superintendent Messenger looked at
another billing program called MuniBilling which she has not yet reviewed.
However, so far Comptroller DeMarmels believes the MJSC program will be
more cost effective and an easier conversion. The Town currently has
approximately 200 water billing customers, but it could expand in the future.
Down the line, Edmunds will be changing their financial program as well. This
would also make a smoother transition.

WATER BILLING SOFTWARE PURCHASE — MJSC SOFTWARE
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 309 of the Year 2025.
Resolved, that the Town will authorize the purchase of the MJSC Software
Program from Edmunds GovTech at a cost of $7,400.00.
Moved by: Councilman Schock  Seconded by: Councilman Mace
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Schock, Meddaugh, and Mace
Nays 0
Absent 1 Pavese

PUBLIC COMMENT

Richard Blackburn, Brittani Blackburn, Charles Brasington, and Heather Walsh were
present regarding the parking and safety issues on the end of Katrina Falls Road near
the Neversink Unique Area Access Point. There was a recent incident that occurred on
Mr. and Mrs. Blackburn’s property where a car hit a tree in their front yard. They also
said there were many other instances as well. The Blackburn’s stated that parking and
speeding is an ongoing issue posing a safety concern. The Town has signage posted,
but it is not helping. Superintendent Carnell provided a permission letter to the Sheriff's
Dept to tow away vehicles . Superintendent Carnell said he will contact the Sheriff's
Department for the Daily Towing List and ask the Towing companies drive through the

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 20 of 21



area. Mr. Brasington said that safety issue concerns both the residents and other
visitors to the area and recommended a flashing speed limit sign.

Supervisor Rieber reached out to the Sheriff's Department and the DEC Region 9.

Attorney Mednick said based on what he is hearing the issue is enforcement which is
done by the County Sheriffs Department. Councilwoman Meddaugh suggested that the
Town write a letter to the County stating the need for more law enforcement presence at
this area. She also said that another idea could be to have some type of peace officer
hired by the Town to issue parking tickets. Attorney Mednick said this is something he
can look into if the Town would like. It was suggested that the Blackburn’s attend a
public safety meeting at the County Government Center on 09/04/2025, 10AM and
other County legislative meetings to voice their concern as well.

ADJOURNMENT

On a motion made by Councilman Schock and seconded by Councilwoman Meddaugh
the meeting was adjourned at 8:03PM. All board members voted in favor of adjourning
the meeting.

Respectfully Submitted By:

Kelly M. Murran, Deputy Town Clerk

Town Board Meeting
August 19, 2025
Page 21 of 21



((ED STq
o "5

Sz

L4

.

i
4}‘“‘&0 ANy
(e)
¥ agenct

%

", o

REGION 2
NEW YORK, N.Y. 10007

August 21, 2025

Via Electronic Mail To: - Supervisor@ThompsonNY.gov

William J. Rieber, Jr., Supervisor
Thompson (T)

4052 St Route 42, Town Hall
Monticello, NY 12701

Re: Notice of Significant Non-Compliance
Consolidated Rock Hill/Emerald Green Sd
SPDES Tracking ID No. NY0035645

Dear Supervisor Rieber, Jr.:

Based on data reported to the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and reflected in the EPA’s
national data system, your facility is currently in Significant Non-Compliance (SNC) due to the following
exceedance(s) of the effluent limit(s) in your New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
(NYSDEC) State Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (SPDES) permit, NY0O035645:

Violation Date(s) | Outfall{s) Parameter(s)
2/2025 001-A Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N)
3/2025 001-A Nitrogen, ammonia total {(as N)

This notice is strictly addressing SNC effluent violation reporting over the last two (2) quarters and may not
include all schedule or other effluent violations.

As part of its core compliance monitoring program, EPA works with all state programs, including NYSDEC, to
address facilities in SNC. Our first step in this process as it relates to your facility is to make sure you are
aware of your violations and to ask for explanations of why the violations are occurring and what you are
doing to correct the violations and return to compliance with your permit. For additional information on SNC,
please see: https://www.epa.gov/enforcement/memorandum-revision-npdes-significant-noncompliance-
snc-criteria-address-violations-non or https://echo.epa.gov/resources/general-info/echo-fag.

Therefore, we are asking you to respond to EPA in writing within thirty (30) days, describing the cause(s) of
the violations, as well as the actions you have taken or will take to address the violations. Under 6 NYCRR
Part 750-2.7(e), you may have provided a Report of Noncompliance Event to NYSDEC, which you may use as
a guide for your response with additional details or updates appended.



Please submit your response to me electronically at kraft.nicole@epa.gov with a copy to
palmrosekrieger.christina@epa.gov. Please also submit a copy of your response to the NYSDEC Regional
Office (Manju Cherian and Meena George, Regional Water Engineer, NYSDEC Region 3, at
Manju.Cherian@dec.ny.gov; Meena.George@dec.ny.gov) and to the NYSDEC Central Office (Edward
Hampston, Director, Bureau of Water Compliance Programs, at edward.hampston@dec.ny.gov). If you
believe the data was reported in error, please provide an appropriate amendment to your Discharge
Monitoring Reporting (DMR).

Please also note that this is a separate initiative by EPA in working with state programs to address SNC. Your
response to this notice does not relieve you of any requirements established by NYSDEC, your permit, or Part
750 regulations, and you must continue to comply with these requirements. If you have been working with
NYSDEC to address these violations, please continue to do so, or you may wish to re-evaluate your previous
response. NYSDEC may take separate compliance or enforcement action regarding these violations, or EPA
may take further action in consultation with NYSDEC.

Should you have any questions concerning this letter, please contact your Regional NYSDEC office, or feel free
to contact Ms. Christina Palmrose-Krieger of my staff at (212) 637-4049 or
palmrosekrieger.christina@epa.gov. If you would like to review your facility’s compliance history in EPA’s data
system, you can enter and search with your permit number at: https://echo.epa.gov. If there is anything you
feel we can help you with, please let us know.

Sincerely,

2

Nicole Foley Kraft, Acting Manager
Water Compliance Branch

cc (via email):

Mr. Ed Hampston, P.E., Director, Bureau of Water Compliance Programs, Div. of Water, NYSDEC,
Edward.Hampston@dec.ny.gov

Mr. Don E. Tuxill, P.E., Chief, Upstate Compliance Section, Bureau of Water Compliance Programs, Div. of
Water, NYSDEC, Don.Tuxill@dec.ny.gov

Mr. Ryan P. Waldron, P.E., Chief, Metropolitan Compliance Section, Bureau of Water Compliance
Programs, Div. of Water, NYSDEC, Ryan.Waldron@dec.ny.gov

Ms. Manju Cherian, P.E., Regional Water Engineer, NYSDEC Region 3 New Paltz Office,
Manju.Cherian@dec.ny.gov

Ms. Meena George, P.E., Regional Water Engineer, NYSDEC Region 3 White Plains Office,
Meena.George@dec.ny.gov




Town of Thompson
Water & Sewer Department

Michael Messenger, Superintendent
Keith Rieber, Assistant Superintendent

August 22, 2025

Via Electronic Mail To: kraft.nicole@epa.gov

Nicole Foley Kraft, Acting Manager
Water Compliance Branch

Re: Response to Notice of Significant Non-Compliance
Consolidated Rock Hill/Emerald GreenSD
SPDES Permit NY0Q35645

Dear Acting Manager Kraft,

in response to your letter regarding the Significant Non-Compliance (SNC) due to the exceedances of the
effluent limits in our New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) State
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (SPDES) permit, NY0035645.

The causes of the Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) violations specified were due to chronic over wasting
of Activated Sludge from the Sequencing Batch Reactor {SBR) basins. Our daily operations include using
a Mixed Liquor Suspended Solids (MLSS) meter to test the MLSS of each basin daily. A failing MLSS
meter provided erroneously high results. The MLSS meter, despite repeated calibration attempts,
consistently drifted, leading to inaccurate readings. The MLSS meter results caused operators to waste
more in-an attempt to lower the solids in the aeration basin.

Due to the low Solids Retention Time (SRT) of the S8R, Nitrification was inhibited. Once the issue was
identified, daily wasting was halted in an attempt to increase SRT. The low SRT coupled with the cold
average temperature (below 45°F) of the SBR basins severely reduced the ability of nitrifying bacteria to
adequately remove nitrogen. ‘

Loweted wasting rates coupled with warmer temperatures in April (above 50°F} allowed the plantto
regain compliance with the SPDES permit for nitrogen, ammonia (as N).

Shift Operators at the plant were retrained in our wasting procedures 1o ensure an adequate SRT in the
SBR basins. A guide was also developed to allow operators to use available data to calculate wasting
rates.

if you have any further questions, please feel free to contact me at {845) 7964-5280 ext. 104 or
mmessenger@thompsonny.gov.

This institution in an equal opportunity provider and employer.
4052 State Route 42, Monticello, NY 12701 | Ph: 845.794,5280 | Thompsonny.gov



Sincerely,

Michael Messenger, Superintendent
¢ {via email):

Mr. William J. Rieber, Ir., Supervisor, Town of Thompson,
supervisor@thompsonn.gov

Ms. Christina Palmrose-Krieger, Water Compliance Branch, EPA Region 2,
palmrosekrieger.christina@epa.gov

Ms, Manju Cherian, P.E., Regional Water Engineer, NYSDEC Region 3 New Paltz Office,
Manju.Cherian@dec.ny.gov

Ms. Meena George, P.E., Regional Water Engineer, NYSDEC Region 3 White Plains Office,
Meena.George@dec.ny.gov

Mr. Ed Hampston, P.E,, Director, Bureau of Water Compliance Programs, Div. of Water, NYSDEC,
Edward.Hampston@dec.ny.gov



R s JPMORGANCHASEMONTICELLO ‘Ch‘e‘\ck
Ceﬁgé%gngu:'}l:;an ST JOHNS STREET Number 3448

<. 100 North Street, P.O, Box-5012 -  MONTICELLO. NY 12701 2
o Montlceilo NY 12701 o k / :
‘ Vendor Number | Check Date | Check Amount
3020 08/15/2025 $235,950.55 ‘

‘ Two Hundred Thlrty F ive Thousand Nme Hundred Fxfty and 55/1 00 Dollgrg e rmibiname

S Pay To Tha Order Of..

3020 f‘ o -
TOWN OF THOMPSON

4052 ROUTE 42 B o
_ MONTICELLO, NY 12701 . e - (\M%M

Couniy T{easurer

DOCUMENT. lNCLUDES A HIDDEN WORD. DD NOT. CASH iF THE WORD VQ!D 1S VISIBLE ALSO INCLUDES AN ORIGINAL WATERMARK e

®3iLLar 10223004730 7PAY785L0AN

County of Sullivan - MORTGAGE TAX P.O. Box 5012 Monticello, N.Y. 12701
INVOICE DATE INVOICE NO. DESCRIPTION INVOICE AMOUNT
08/15/2025 TREAS08152515 | MORTGAGE TAX 2ND QTR 2025 235,950.55
PO#

G/L Account: TA-00058-00237

Vendor Name Check No. Check Date Check Amount

Vendor No.
: S TOWN OF THOMPSON 3448 08/15/2025 $235,950.55




RTAT AR XA

(s6°vvL'691$)
(56'¥¥L'691%)

(s6°vv2'691%)
(56°'¥2'691%)

00°0$

00°0%

dx3 joy

—Z
T m,u,w\\ﬂgy

00°0$
00°0$

00°0$
00°0$
00°0$
00°0$
00°0%

bryjouzg

¢ s05kLss7 <+

S6'vv2'691$
S6'vv.'691$

S6'vv.L'691$
S6'vv.'691$
S6'vvL'691%
00°0%$
00°0$

upaid

00°0%
00°0$

00'0$
00°0$
00°0$
00°0$
00°0$

jiqsa

00°000°052$)
 (00°000°052$)

-
(0o0"000°'052$)
00°0$
00°0$
(00°000°052$)
(00"000°052$)

junowy }oBpng

y oy efeq

usiey AG uns wodey

[e01 pues
000V Pun4 Joj [eJo

XV13IOVOLHONW 000°S00€°000V 40} [EJOL ALA

[ejol ¥ WA
12ve #io funoy 8919L1H¥O  S20e/oe/y
[ejol I WA
L-lAg Geoz/LL

9ouala)ay wnN/edA}  ejeq jewnop

G202 1edA |edsid

poday uoioesuel] jieyaq Jobpa jelsusn

uosdwoy] Jo umoj

14 1O - xe} abebpopy

} [ewnor Ag plingasy

JONVIVE QHVMYOL "V3A
XV1 IOVOLHON 000°500€"000V
NV

uondussaq jJunoddy Jaquinp jJunodoy

AYOA NMEN

NOSdWOH.L

B




GZOZILTIN0 3 o efleg usies JAG uns uodan

(21'€52°2828) 00°0% LL'€S2°/8/$  00°0$ (0o0"052'2829) [e30] puelD
(21-€52'28L8) 00°0$ L1°€52°18/$  00°0% (00°052'28.%) 000V Pun o} [ejo)
(21°€52°281%) 00°0$ L1°€52°/8/$  00°0% (00°052'28.9) XV.1 IOVOLHONW 000°S00€°000V 10} [e10f ALA
(62002'591$) 00°0% 6°002'S9L$  00°0% (00002°591$) Bl ZL U
xey
00°0% 62°002'S9L$  00°0% 00°0% abebuoN O Wy 986SLLAr  ¥2OZ/LERZL 4! S[ENIODY SNUBASY pu3 JESA
sjuswpuawy
00°0$ 00°0$ 00'0% (00°002'591$) g siopsues] Jebpng  geeSLLaa  ¥20Z/LER) 4} XYL 3OVOLHONW
00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ (o0'0ss'z2€9) oL Ll WA
. ¥202/20/11 Bugesyy
00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ (0o0"055°22€9) 18254438 ¥eOT/LLL b pJeog UMO] - SJuSWIPUBWY § SIBjsuel] Jabpng
(8LvL¥'LY1$) 00°0$ 8L ViV IvLS  000% 00°0$ [eloL 0L W
00°0$ 8L¥I¥'L¥LS  000% 00°0$ G8EE #40 Aunoy YreSLIYO  20e/8z/ol oL xe} abebpop
(L0 11E'EEES) 00°0$ LO'LLE'EEES  00°0% 00°0$ [eloL 6 UIN
00°0$ L0°Lle'eees  00°0% 00°0% ¥9EE #910 Aunoy 0ELSLL¥D  YZ0zZ/oE/6 6 2O - xe} ebebuoly
(e5°99L'L¥1$) 00°0$ €5'99/'/¥1$  00°0$ 00°0$ |ejoL S WA
00°0$ €5°99.°/¥L$  00°0% 00°0$ £PEE #10 Ajunod 18vYLLIYD  ¥202/02/S S 1O - xe} abebuon
00°0$ 00°0$ 00'0$ 00°0$ (0o0"000'052$) [ejoL L UIN
00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ (00°000'052%) L-LAg £202/L/) } Jewnor Ag plingay
00'0$ JONVIVE QHVMYOL ¥Y3A
XV.1 IDVOLIONW 000°S00£°000V
dx3 joy br/oug Hpain 1L ETq| junowy j3a6png @oualaey wnN/edA]  eje(q jewsnop WY
A uonduoasag Junoady Jaquinp junoaay
HYOA MIN
202 1ea, [edsld NOSdWOH.L

Hoday uonoesuel] jieyaqg 1obpa [eisuan
uosdwoy] jo umo]




NOTICE Tn access rem ttance in rmation’ on any one of your N payments,

2078 2
> | visit https: ;esuppller sfs.ny.gov/ ‘ e
Agency Code and Descnpt;on Tele Inquiry No Voucher No Payee Reference/invoice No Ref/inv Date Payment. Amount
)SCO1 Office of State Comptrolle 86‘6/321 8503 LMA2410 LGTM2410 08/06/25 3,332.00
GOV'T ENTITIES, VENDORS, NOT-FOR-PROFITS: - (EEEEEYTXFETI | Check Total | $3,332.00]
Go to hitp://lwww.osc.state.ny.us/state-vendors for Electronic Payments information

DETACH HERE BEFORE CASHING ' PLEASE CASH WITHIN 180 DAYS

09985899 . ﬁtate of Fetw Pork Check No. 10612078
i oy 9-55
[ $3,332.00]) L TATIoN A Fvavs s A
. o AUGUST 12,2025 0SCo1
Paytotie  THOMPSON TOWN OF
Qrxder of:

KNOW YOUR ENDORSER

$3,332.00

KeyBank N.A.

homas P. DiNapo
State Comptroller:

® 0B & 2078® 1024300556n 3205853202789



12€08
696°S
99,
¥81°05
zee'ee
76S°E
v0s'T

18995

026vS
0ze’cy
619'VL
L8%9
96791
LY8'SL
8EV'ST
€L9°T€
88T'¢T
S76'8Y
vov'zT
8779
0LEL
€16V
S90S
L16°C

($) 9z
-6Z0Z A4S Ui painquisiq aq o}
VIALL Pue NIV JO Junowy jejo}

679°T

($)

VAL O uonedojly

(e VL

{$) uawAed
WIv 138png pajeu]

UmMo| edoi;

adej|in uealjng
ade|iin uBAlfNg
ade|lin ueAljng
adejin ueAl|ins
a8e|liA ueAlng
ade|liA ueAlng
CELIN ueAljns
UMOo| UBALING
UMO | ueAljng
UmMoj| ueayjns
UMOo}| ueAalng
UMOo} ueAlng
umoj uealjjng
UMOJ ueaijng
Umoj ueaAljing
Umoy| UBAL|ING
umoj UeBAljINS
UMO | ueAljng
UMO | UBAl|Ng
umoj UBAIliNG
UMO] ueannsg
umoy UeAlNS
a8ejjIn 3|o4ns
EELN jloyns
adefjIA Aloyns
agejjin jloyns
ageljiA Aloyns
ade|jin jjoyns
ssej) Ajunoy

sade|jIA pue sumoj
- 8uipung asuejsissy

uolieg JO UMO]
0JOGSHNMA JO 33ejpA
93pLpoom jo adejjin
O]|321IUOW j0 33ejjiA
Aviaqr jo adejiA
3||IAu0SIaYar Jo a8e(|IA
3inq3uiwoolg Jo a8ejA
(v)32421V Jo agejjA

us3isny JO umoy
uosdwioy] Jo UMoj
PUBPIDOY 4O UMO]
MUISISASN JO UMO]
Suniexewe jJo umoy
pueIagquInT JO UMo]
Ariagi7 Jo umoy

puejysiH Jo umoy
JUOWS1S JO UMD}
43inqg1sa404 JO umo}
8ingsjjed jo umoj
3JeMBIR( JO UMO]
U0123Yd0) JO UMC]
U0O02Ij{eD O UMO]

12y1ag o umoy

g uoldweyisam jo a8e|ia
| uoydwiey 359 jo a8e|jIA
youeig ay] Jo ade(jia
uoydweyinos 4o adeja
Weyaioys 4o adejjia
aJieljes Jo adejjiA

Ajedpiuniy

00000vS0E06Y
091YS0Z05108Y
OvtrS018Z108Y
002e0eZ8Y08Y
069¢0L9v108Y
0LvZO1TTYO8Y
04v0020Sv08Y
000vGEZ8Y08Y

000006£8€08%
00000€¢8e08Y
0000081L£08Y
000009508
00000Z0S€08Y
00000£8v£08Y
0000049vE08Y
0000016£E08Y
0000050£E08Y
000006e6TE08Y
0000018¢Ze08Y
0000092708y
00000641087
000001TTEO8Y
0000004008V
01€S048Lv0LY
STES0L8LY0LY
0805008Lv0LY
069v0L8LV0LY
04S¥09601v0LY
08evOTCYvOLY

3PO2IUNiAl 3SO

jedpiuni Aesodway pue (Ally) saijedisiunipj o4 SDAIIUIIU] PUB PIY 9Z-5Z0T A4S



B

ressompzt

**********************************************X

In the Matter of Extension No. 6 of the NEGATIVE DECLARATION
SACKETT LAKE SEWER DISTRICT of the UNDER SEQR
Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York.

ok R R sk sk ok ok o ko Y

1. The Town Board of the Town of Thompson, by Resolution duly adopted at a regular meeting thereof,
held on the 2™ day of September, 2025, did determine that Extension No. 6 of the Sackett Lake Sewer District in
the Town of Thompson, will not have a significant effect on the environment.

2. Lead agency for such project is the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, whose address is 4052
Route 42, Monticello, New York 12701, the designation of which was accomplished by Resolution duly adopted
at a regular meeting of the Town Board held on the 1% day of April, 2025.

3. The person to contact for further information is Supervisor William J. Rieber, Jr., whose address is
4052 Route 42, Monticello, New York 12701, telephone number 845-794-2500.

4. The proposed extension of the Sackett Lake Sewer District enables Ari Jacobs (T/O Thompson Tax
Map Parcel #56-1-32.54) to become part of the said district and to use the facilities of the Sackett Lake Sewer
Treatment Plant for the disposal of its sewage, the cost thereof being borne solely by the said property owners.

5. The basis for the negative declaration is as follows: that the administration and operation and
maintenance of the sewer facilities and the use thereof by Ari Jacobs (T/O Thompson Tax Map Parcel #56-1-
32.54) will not violate any of the criteria for determining environmental significance as set forth in Part 617 of
the Regulations.

Dated: Monticello, New York
September 2™, 2025
TOWN OF THOMPSON
Town Hall

4052 Route 42
Monticello, New York 12701



At aregular meeting of the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New
York, held at the Town Hall in Monticello, New York, in the said Town, on the 2™ day of

September, 2025, at 7:00 o’clock P.M., Prevailing Time.

The meeting was called to order by Supervisor Rieber, and upon roll being called, the

following were

PRESENT: William J. Rieber, Jr., Supervisor
Scott Mace, Councilman
John A. Pavese, Councilman
Melinda S. Meddaugh, Councilwoman
Ryan Schock, Councilman

ABSENT: None

The following resolution was duly moved and seconded, to wit:



RESOLUTION DATED SEPTEMBER 2", 2025

A RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS IN RELATION TO PROPOSED
EXTENSION NO. 6 OF THE SACKETT LAKE SEWER DISTRICT, IN THE TOWN OF
THOMPSON, SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW YORK.

WHEREAS, the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, has
heretofore duly caused a general Map, Plan and Report to be prepared and filed in the office of the
Town Clerk of said Town in relation to the proposed Extension No. 6 of the Sackett Lake Sewer
District in said Town; and

WHEREAS, an Order was duly adopted by said Town Board on August 12, 2025, reciting
a description of the boundaries of said proposed district, the improvements proposed, the
maximum amount proposed to be expended for said improvements, the proposed method of
financing to be employed, the fact that said map, plan and report were on file in the Town Clerk’s
Office for public inspection and specifying the 2™ day of September, 2025, at 7:00 o’clock P.M.,
Prevailing Time, at the Town Hall, 4052 Route 42, Monticello, New York, in said Town as the
time when and the place where said Town Board would meet for the purpose of holding a Public
Hearing to hear all persons interested in the subject thereof concerning the same; and

WHEREAS, such Order was duly published and posted in the manner and within the time
prescribed by Section 209-d of the Town Law, and proof of said publication and posting has been
duly presented to said Town Board; and

WHEREAS,; said Public Hearing was duly held at the time and place set forth in said Order,
as aforesaid, at which all persons desiring to be heard were duly heard; and

WHEREAS, said Town Board has duly considered said Map, Plan and Report and the

evidence given at said Public Hearing; NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT



RESOLVED, by the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York,

as follows:

Section 1. Upon the evidence given at the aforesaid Public Hearing, it is hereby found

and determined as follows:

a)

b)

The notice of the aforesaid Public Hearing was published and posted as required by
law and is otherwise sufficient;

All the property and property owners within said proposed district are benefitted
thereby;

All the property and property owners benefitted are included within the limits of
said proposed district;

The establishment of said proposed district is in the public interest;

That the average annual cost for a typical single-family residence would be Six
Hundred Twenty-Nine and 60/100 ($629.60) Dollars; and

That the‘ requirements of the State Environmental Quality Review Act have been

complied with.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call,

which resulted as follows:

William J. Rieber, Jr. VOTING Aye
Scott Mace VOTING Aye
John A. Pavese VOTING Aye
Melinda S. Meddaugh VOTING Aye
Ryan Schock VOTING Aye

The resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

* ok ok ok ok ok 3k ok



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN) SS.:

I, the undersigned Clerk of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the Town Board
of said Town, including the resolution contained therein, held on the 2™ day of September, 2025,
with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct transcript
therefrom and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters therein
referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that all members of said Board had due notice of said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, pursuant to Section 99 of the Public Officers Law (Open
Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that PRIOR to the time of said meeting, I duly caused a public
notice of the time and place of said meeting to be given to the following newspapers and/or news
media as follows:

Newspaper and/or other news media Date given
Sullivan County Democrat 01/10/2025
Bold Gold Media Group Radio Stations 01/08/2025

I FURTHER CERTIFY that PRIOR to the time of said meeting, I duly caused public
notice of the time and place of said meeting to be conspicuously posted in the following designated
public location(s) on the following dates:

Designated Location(s) Date of Posting
of posted notice

Town Hall 01/10/2025
Village Hall 01/10/2025
Sullivan County Courthouse & Government Center 01/10/2025

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Town
this *" day of September, 2025.

Town Clerk
(CORPORATE SEAL)



= ]

At a regular meeting of the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New
York, held at the Town Hall in Monticello, New York, in the said Town on the 2™ day of
September, 2025, at 7:00 o’clock P.M., Prevailing Time.
The meeting was called to order by Supervisor Rieber, and upon roll being called, the
following were
PRESENT:  William J. Rieber, Jr., Supervisor
Scott Mace, Councilman
John A. Pavese, Councilman

Melinda S. Meddaugh, Councilwoman
Ryan Schock, Councilman

ABSENT: None

The following resolution was moved and seconded, to wit,

{”“‘*@



RESOLUTION DATED SEPTEMBER 2", 2025

A RESOLUTION APPROVING EXTENSION NO. 6 OF THE SACKETT LAKE SEWER
DISTRICT IN THE TOWN OF THOMPSON, SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW YORK, AND
FURTHER APPROVING THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE IMPROVEMENTS PROPOSED
THEREFOR.

WHEREAS, the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, has
heretofore duly caused a general Map, Plan and Report to be prepared and filed with the Town
Board of said Town in relation to Extension No. 6 of the Sackett Lake Sewer District in said Town;
and

WHEREAS, an Order was duly adopted by said Town Board on August 12, 2025, reciting
a description of the boundaries of the said proposed district, the improvements proposed, the
maximum amount proposed to be expended for said improvements, the proposed method of
financing to be employed, the fact that said Map, Plan and Report were on file in the Town Clerk’s
Office for public inspection, and specifying September 2™, 2025 at 7:00 o’clock P.M., Prevailing
Time, at the Town Hall, 4052 Route 42, Monticello, New York, in said Town, as the time when
and the place where said Town Board would meet for the purpose of holding a Public Hearing to
hear all persons interested in the subject thereof concerning the same; and

WHEREAS, such Order was duly published and posted in the manner and within the time
prescribed by Section 209-d of the Town Law and proof of said publication and posting has been
duly presented to said Town Board; and

WHEREAS, said Public Hearing was duly held at the time and place set forth in said Order

as aforesaid, at which all persons desiring to be heard were duly heard; and



WHEREAS, following said Public Hearing and based upon the evidence given thereat,
said Town Board duly adopted a Resolution determining in the affirmative all of the questions set
forth in subdivision 1 of Section 209-e of the Town Law; and

WHEREAS, it is now desired to adopt a further Resolution pursuant to subdivision 2(b) of
Section 209-¢ of the Town Law approving the establishment of said district and the construction
of the improvements proposed therefor; NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

RESOLVED, by the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York,
as follows:

Section 1. Extension No. 6 of the Sackett L.ake Sewer District in the Town of Thompson,
Sullivan County, New York, to be bounded and described as hereinafter set forth, is hereby
approved and authorized. The improvement proposed for said Sewer District as extended,
consisting of providing a means by which Ari Jacobs (T/O Thompson Tax Map Parcel #56-1-
32.54) may obtain sewer service by becoming part of the said Sackett Lake Sewer District, is
likewise approved and authorized. The entire amount to be expended for such improvement,
including, but not limited to costs of construction, engineering, administrative and legal fees, shall
be borne solely and entirely by the said landowner, namely Ari Jacobs. Annual charges shall be
on a user consumption basis or such other method as the Town Board of the Town of Thompson
shall determine by Resolution.

Section 2. Said District shall be bounded and described as more particularly set forth in
Schedule A@ annexed hereto and made a part hereof.

Section 3.  After the adoption of this Resolution, the Town Clerk is hereby directed to file

certified copies of this Resolution, in accordance with and where required by law.



Section 4. This Resolution is adopted subject to a permissive referendum.
The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote onroll call,

which resulted as follows:

William J. Rieber, Jr. VOTING Aye
Scott Mace VOTING Aye
John A. Pavese VOTING Aye
Melinda S. Meddaugh VOTING Aye
Ryan Schock VOTING Aye

The resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN )SS.:

I, the undersigned Clerk of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the Town Board
of said Town, including the Resolution contained therein, held on the 2™ day of September, 2025,
with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct transcript
therefrom and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters therein
referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that all members of said Board had due notice of said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, pursuant to Section 99 of the Public Officers Law (Open
Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that PRIOR to the time of said meeting, I duly caused a public
notice of the time and place of said meeting to be given to the following newspapers and/or news
media as follows:

Newspaper and/or other news media Date given
Sullivan County Democrat 01/10/2025
Bold Gold Media Group Radio Stations 01/08/2025

I FURTHER CERTIFY that PRIOR to the time of said meeting, I duly caused public
notice of the time and place of said meeting to be conspicuously posted in the following designated
public location(s) on the following dates:

Designated Location(s) Date of Posting
of posted notice

Town Hall 01/10/2025
Village Hall 01/10/2025
Sullivan County Courthouse 7 Government Center 01/10/2025

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Town
this 4™ day of September, 2025.

Town Clerk
(CORPORATE SEAL)



SCHEDULE A@



TOWN CLERK CERTIFICATE

STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN )SS.:

I, MARILEE J. CALHOUN, Town Clerk of the Town of Thompson, do hereby certify as
follows:

1. That on August , 2025, the Town Board of the Town of Thompson duly adopted
a Resolution approving Extension No. 6 of the Sackett Lake Sewer District in the Town of
Thompson.

2. That said Resolution was subject to a permissive referendum.

3. That within ten (10) days after the adoption of the Resolution aforesaid, I did, in the
same manner as provided for a notice of special election, post and publish the full text of the said
Resolution, together with the date of its adoption, and that said Resolution was adopted subject to
a Motion for a Permissive Referendum.

4. That more than thirty (30) days have elapsed since the adoption of said Resolution and
the posting and publication thereof, and no petition protesting against such Resolution and
requesting that it be submitted to the owner of taxable real property situate in the proposed district
for their approval or disapproval has been filed with your deponent as Town Clerk.

Dated: Monticello, New York
September , 2025

Marilee J. Calhoun
Town Clerk



1000086329.19 (212)

At a regular meeting of the Town Board of the Town of
Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, held at the Town Hall,
in Monticello, New York, on September 2, 2025, at 7:00
o'clock P.M., Prevailing Time.

PRESENT:

Supervisor

Councilperson

Councilperson

Councilperson

Councilperson

X
In the Matter of the Increase and Improvement
of the Facilities of the Consolidated : Resolution No.
Rock Hill/Emerald Green Sewer District, :
in the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York PUBLIC INTEREST ORDER
) :

WHEREAS, the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, has had
under consideration the increase and improvement of the facilities of the Consolidated Rock
HilllEmerald Green Sewer District, in said Town (the “District”), consisting of replacement and
rehabilitation of sewer mains and manholes, lateral replacement and related site improvements,
including incidental expenses in connection therewith; and

WHEREAS, the Town Board of said Town has duly caused MHE Engineering, D.P.C. to
prepare a map, plan and report, including an estimate of cost, dated June 27, 2025, relating to said

increase and improvement of facilities in said Emerald Green and Rock Hill Sewer Districts, which

285031360.2



-2-

describes details of the project and the expected costs to be paid by property owners in the District;
and

WHEREAS, such expected costs are projections, are subject to various contingencies and,
pursuant to law, may be further adjusted by the annual apportionment of such costs by the Town
Board between the District; and

WHEREAS, the estimated maximum cost of such increase and improvement of facilities is
determined to be $4,900,000; and

WHEREAS, to the extent not paid from user charges, such cost shall be annually apportioned
and assessed upon the several lots and parcels of land within the District after taking into account
the annual apportionment of such cost between the District pursuant to Section 202-b paragraph 4
of the Town Law, in the manner provided by law, in an amount sufficient to pay the principal and
interest on bonds, notes or other obligations issued to finance such cost as the same become due;
and

WHEREAS, an environmental analysis was previously prepared pursuant to the regulations
of the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation promulgated pursuant to the State
Environmental Quality Review Act in connection with such increase and improvement of the facilities
of said District and it has been determined that such increase and improvement of the facilities of
said District and use will not result in any significant environmental effects; and

WHEREAS, at a meeting of said Town Board duly called and held on August 19, 2025, an
order was duly adopted by it and entered in the minutes specifying the said Town Board would meet
to consider the increase and improvement of the District, in said Town at an estimated maximum
cost of $4,900,000 and to hear all persons interested in the subject thereof concerning the same at
the Town Hall, in Monticello, New York, in said Town, on September 2, 2025, at 7:00 P.M., Prevailing

Time; and

285031360.2



-3-

WHEREAS, said order duly certified by the Town Clerk was duly published and posted at
least ten, but not more than twenty, days prior to the date of the public hearing, as required by law;
and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly held at the time and place set forth in said notice, at
which all persons desiring to be heard were duly heard; and NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

ORDERED, by the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, as
follows:

Section 1. Upon the evidence given at the aforesaid public hearing, it is hereby found
and determined that it is in the public interest to increase and improve the facilities of the District, in
said Town, consisting of replacement and rehabilitation of sewer mains and manholes, lateral
replacement and related site improvements, including incidental expenses in connection therewith,
at an estimated maximum cost of $4,900,000.

Section 2. This order shall take effect immediately.

285031360.2



The question of the adoption of the foregoing order was duly put to a vote on roll call, which

resulted as follows:

VOTING

VOTING

VOTING

VOTING

VOTING

The order was thereupon declared duly adopted.

285031360.2



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN ; .

I, the undersigned Clerk of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY:

That | have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the Town Board
of said Town, including the order contained therein, held on September 2, 2025, the original thereof
on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct transcript therefrom and of the whole of
said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that all members of said Board had due notice of said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that said meeting was (i) open to the general public pursuant to
Section 103 of the Public Officers Law or (ii) conducted in conformance with Section 103-a of the
Public Officers Law.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, PRIOR to the time of said meeting, | duly caused a public notice
of the time and place of said meeting to be given to the following newspaper and/or other news media
as follows:

Newspaper and/or Other News Media Date Given

285031360.2



-2-

I FURTHER CERTIFY that PRIOR to the time of said meeting, | duly caused public notice of
the time and place of said meeting to be conspicuously posted in the following designated public

location(s) on the following dates:

Designated Location(s) of Posted Notices Date of Posting

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Town,

on September , 2025,

Town Clerk

(SEAL)

285031360.2



1000086329.19 (212)

At a regular meeting of the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New
York, held at the Town Hall, in Monticello, New York, New York, in said Town, on September 2, 2025,

at o'clock P.M., Eastern Time.

The meeting was called to order by , and upon

roll being called, the following were

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

The following resolution was offered by Councilperson

who moved its adoption, seconded by Councilperson , to-wit;

285031360.2



BOND RESOLUTION DATED SEPTEMBER 2, 2025.

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $4,900,000 BONDS OF THE

TOWN OF THOMPSON, SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW YORK, TO PAY THE COSTS

OF THE INCREASE AND IMPROVEMENT OF THE FACILITIES OF THE

CONSOLIDATED ROCK HILL/EMERALD GREEN SEWER DISTRICT,

CONSISTING OF REPLACEMENT AND REHABILITATION OF SEWER MAINS

AND MANHOLES, LATERAL REPLACEMENT AND RELATED SITE

IMPROVEMENTS, IN AND FOR SAID DISTRICT.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions heretofore duly had and taken in accordance with the
provisions of Section 202-b of the Town Law, and more particularly an order dated September 2,
2025, said Town Board has determined it to be in the public interest to increase and improve the
facilities of the Consolidated Rock Hill/Emerald Green Sewer District (the “District”) in the Town of
Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, at an estimated maximum cost of $4,900,000; and

WHEREAS, it is now desired to provide funding for such capital project; NOW, THEREFORE,
BEIT

RESOLVED, by the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, as
follows:

Section 1. For the class of objects or purposes of paying costs of the increase and
improvement of the facilities of the Consolidated Rock Hill/Emerald Green Sewer District, in said
Town (the “District”), consisting of replacement and rehabilitation of sewer mains and manholes,
lateral replacement and related site improvements, including incidental expenses in connection
therewith, in said District, there are hereby authorized to be issued $4,900,000 bonds of said Town
pursuant to the provisions of the Local Finance Law.

Section 2. It is hereby determined that the estimated maximum cost of the aforesaid
class of objects or purposes is $4,900,000 and that the plan for the financing thereof is by the
issuance of the $4,900,000 bonds of said Town authorized to be issued pursuant to this bond

resolution. The amount of bonds ultimately to be issued shall be reduced by any grants in aid

received by the Town to pay a portion of the cost of the aforesaid class of objects or purposes.

285031360.2



2.

Section 3. Itis hereby determined that the period of probable usefulness of the aforesaid
class of objects or purposes is forty years, pursuant to subdivision four of paragraph a of Section
11.00 of the Local Finance Law. It is hereby further determined that the maximum maturity of the
bonds herein authorized will exceed five years.

Section 4. Subject to the provisions of the Local Finance Law, the power to authorize
the issuance of and to sell bond anticipation notes in anticipation of the issuance and sale of the
bonds herein authorized, including renewals of such notes, is hereby delegated to the Supervisor,
the chief fiscal officer. Such notes shall be of such terms, form and contents, and shall be sold in
such manner, as may be prescribed by said Supervisor, consistent with the provisions of the Local
Finance Law.

Section 5. The faith and credit of said Town are hereby irrevocably pledged to the
payment of the principal of and interest on such obligations as the same respectively become due
and payable. To the extent not provided for from other sources, an annual appropriation shall be
made in each year sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on such obligations becoming due
and payable in such year. Such cost shall be annually apportioned and assessed upon the several
lots and parcels of land within the District in the manner provided by law in an amount sufficient to
pay the principal and interest on said bonds as the same become due.

Section 6. Such bonds shall be in fully registered form and shall be signed in the name
of the Town by the manual or facsimile signature of the Supervisor and a facsimile of its corporate
seal shall be imprinted or impressed thereon and may be attested by the manual or facsimile
signature of the Town Clerk.

Section 7. The powers and duties of advertising such bonds for sale, conducting the sale
and awarding the bonds, are hereby delegated to the Supervisor, who shall advertise such bonds
for sale, conduct the sale, and award the bonds in such manner as he shall deem best for the
interests of the Town; including, but not limited to, the power to sell said bonds to the New York State

Environmental Facilities Corporation; provided, however, that in the exercise of these delegated

285031360.2



-3-

powers, he shall comply fully with the provisions of the Local Finance Law and any order or rule of
the State Comptroller applicable to the sale of municipal bonds. The receipt of the Supervisor shall
be a full acquittance to the purchaser of such bonds, who shall not be obliged to see to the application
of the purchase money.

Section 8. All other matters, except as provided herein relating to such bonds, including
determining whether to issue such bonds having substantially level or declining annual debt service
and all matters related thereto, prescribing whether manual or facsimile signatures shall appear on
said bonds, prescribing the method for the recording of ownership of said bonds, appointing the fiscal
agent or agents for said bonds, providing for the printing and delivery of said bonds (and if said bonds
are to be executed in the name of the Town by the facsimile signature of its Supervisor, providing for
the manual countersignature of a fiscal agent or of a designated official of the Town), the date,
denominations, maturities and interest payment dates, place or places of payment, and also
including the consolidation with other issues, shall be determined by the Supervisor. It is hereby
determined that it is to the financial advantage of the Town not to impose and collect from registered
owners of such bonds any charges for mailing, shipping and insuring bonds transferred or exchanged
by the fiscal agent, and, accordingly, pursuant to paragraph ¢ of Section 70.00 of the Local Finance
Law, no such charges shall be so collected by the fiscal agent. Such bonds shall contain
substantially the recital of validity clause provided for in Section 52.00 of the Local Finance Law and
shall otherwise be in such form and contain such recitals in addition to those required by Section
52.00 of the Local Finance Law, as the Supervisor shall determine.

Section 9. The power to issue and sell notes to the New York State Environmental
Facilities Corporation pursuant to Section 169.00 of the Local Finance Law is hereby delegated to
the Supervisor. Such notes shall be of such terms, form and contents as may be prescribed by said
Supervisor consistent with the provisions of the Local Finance Law.

Section 10.  The Supervisor is hereby further authorized, at his or her sole discretion, to

execute a project finance and loan agreement, and any other agreements with the New York State

285031360.2



~4-

Department of Environmental Conservation and/or the New York State Environmental Facilities
Corporation, including amendments thereto, and including any instruments (or amendments thereto)
in the effectuation thereof, in order to effect the financing or refinancing of the class of objects or
purposes described in Section 1 hereof, or a portion thereof, by a bond, and, or note issue of said
Town in the event of the sale of same to the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation.

Section 11.  The validity of such bonds and bond anticipation notes may be contested only

)] Such obligations are authorized for an object or purpose for which said Town is not
authorized to expend money, or

(2) The provisions of law which should be complied with at the date of publication of this
resolution are not substantially complied with,

and an action, suit or proceeding contesting such validity is commenced within twenty days
after the date of such publication, or

(3) Such obligations are authorized in violation of the provisions of the Constitution.

Section 12.  This resolution shall constitute a statement of official intent for purposes of
Treasury Regulations Section 1.150 - 2. Other than as specified in this resolution, no monies are, or
are reasonably expected to be, reserved, allocated on a long-term basis, or otherwise set aside with
respect to the permanent funding of the object or purpose described herein.

Section 13.  This resolution, which takes effect immediately, shall be published in

summary in the , @ newspaper having general circulation

in said Town, together with a notice of the Town Clerk in substantially the form provided in Section

81.00 of the Local Finance Law.

285031360.2



The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call,
which resulted as follows:

VOTING

VOTING

VOTING

VOTING

VOTING

The resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

285031360.2



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN 3 .

|, the undersigned Clerk of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY:

That | have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the Town Board
of said Town, including the resolution contained therein, held on September 2, 2025, with the original
thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct transcript therefrom and of the
whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters therein referred to.

| FURTHER CERTIFY that all members of said Board had due notice of said meeting.

| FURTHER CERTIFY that said meeting was (i) open to the general public pursuant to
Section 103 of the Public Officers Law or (ii) conducted in conformance with Section 103-a of the
Public Officers Law.

| FURTHER CERTIFY that, PRIOR to the time of said meeting, | duly caused a public notice
of the time and place of said meeting to be given to the following newspaper and/or other news media
as follows:

Newspaper and/or Other News Media Date Given

2850313602



-2-

| FURTHER CERTIFY that PRIOR to the time of said meeting, | duly caused public notice of
the time and place of said meeting to be conspicuously posted in the following designated public

location(s) on the following dates:

Designated Location(s) of Posted Notices Date of Posting

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Town,

on , 2025.

Town Clerk

(SEAL)

285031360.2



LEGAL NOTICE OF ESTOPPEL

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the resolution, a summary of which is published herewith,
has been adopted by the Town Board of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, on
September 2, 2025, and the validity of the obligations authorized by such resolution may be hereafter
contested only if such obligations were authorized for an object or purpose for which said Town is
not authorized to expend money, or if the provisions of law which should have been complied with
as of the date of publication of this notice were not substantially complied with, and an action, suit or
proceeding contesting such validity is commenced within twenty days after the date of publication of
this notice, or such obligations were authorized in violation of the provisions of the Constitution.

A summary of the aforesaid resolution is set forth below. The resolution provides as follows:
that the faith and credit of the Town of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York (the “Town”), are
irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on such obligations as the same
respectively become due and payable; that an annual appropriation shall be made in each year
sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on such obligations becoming due and payable in such
year, that the power to authorize the issuance of and to sell bond anticipation notes in anticipation of
the issuance and sale of the bonds authorized by such resolution including renewals of such notes,
is delegated to the Town Supervisor; that all other matters, except as provided in such resolution
relating to the bonds authorized, including the date, denominations, maturities and interest payment
dates, within the limitations prescribed in such resolution and the manner of the execution of the
same and also including the consolidation with other issues, and the authority to issue such
obligations on the basis of substantially level or declining annual debt service, is delegated to and
shall be determined by the Town Supervisor; and that this LEGAL NOTICE shall be published.

A summary of the bond resolution follows:
BOND RESOLUTION DATED SEPTEMBER 2, 2025

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $4,900,000 BONDS OF THE
TOWN OF THOMPSON, SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW YORK, TO PAY THE COSTS
OF THE INCREASE AND IMPROVEMENT OF THE FACILITIES OF THE
CONSOLIDATED ROCK HILLJEMERALD GREEN SEWER DISTRICT,
CONSISTING OF REPLACEMENT AND REHABILITATION OF SEWER MAINS
AND MANHOLES, LATERAL REPLACEMENT AND RELATED SITE
IMPROVEMENTS, IN AND FOR SAID DISTRICT.

The period of probable usefulness of the aforesaid class of objects or purposes is
forty years pursuant to subdivision four of paragraph a of Section 11.00 of the Local
Finance Law.

THE FULL TEXT OF THIS BOND RESOLUTION IS AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC
INSPECTION AT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK LOCATED AT 4052 ROUTE 42,
MONTICELLO, NEW YORK, DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS.

Dated: Monticello, New York
, 2025

Town Clerk

285031360.2



#3

X

In the Matter of Extension No. 03 of the

CONSOLIDATED ROCK HILL-EMERALD GREEN FINAL ORDER EXPANDING
SEWER DISTRICT in the Town of Thompson, County CONSOLIDATED ROCK HILL

of Sullivan, State of New York. EMERALD GREEN SEWER DISTRICT
X

A resolution having been duly adopted by the Town Board of the Town of Thompson
directing Town Engineers, MHE Engineering, D.P.C., to supervise the preparation of a map, plan
and report relating to the extension of the Consolidated Rock Hill-Emerald Green Sewer District
in the Town of Thompson, and said map, plan and report were duly filed in the office of the
Town Clerk, and an order having been duly adopted by the said Town Board on June 3%, 2025,
reciting a description of the boundaries of the said proposed district, the improvements proposed,
the maximum amount proposed to be expended for said improvements, the proposed method of
financing to be employed, the fact that a map, plan and report were on file in the Town Clerk’s
Office for public inspection, and specifying the 1% day of July, 2025, at 7:00 o’clock, P.M.,
Prevailing Time, at the Town Hall, 4052 Route 42, Monticello, New York, in said Town, as the
time when and the place where said Town Board would meet for the purpose of holding a public
hearing to hear all persons interested in the proposal to expand the said sewer district and after
due publication and posting of said order according to law, said hearing was duly held by said
Board at such time and place, and the Town Board having considered said proposal and heard all
persons interested in the same, and did, on July 1%, 2025, resolve and determine that the notice of
hearing for July 1%, 2025, was published and posted as required by law, and otherwise sufficient,
that all the property and property owners within the created district would be benefitted thereby,

that all property and property owners benefitted were included within the limits of the created



district, and that it was in the public interest to grant and hold the relief sought, and it having
been then and there further duly resolved that the creation of such district as proposed be
approved subject to permissive referendum in the manner provided in Article 7 of the Town
Law, and a certificate of the Town Clerk having been duly filed pursuant to subdivision 4 of
Section 209-e of the Town Law certifying that no petition was filed requesting such a
referendum, and it appearing to the satisfaction to the said Town Board that no application
pursuant to Town Law Section 209-f is required to be made to the State Department of Audit and
Control,

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY

ORDERED, that the Consolidated Rock Hill-Emerald Green Sewer District, in the Town
of Thompson, Sullivan County, New York, be, and the same hereby is, extended, to be bounded
and described as more particularly set forth in Schedule “A” annexed hereto and made a part
hereof; and it is further

ORDERED, that the Town Board, acting for and on behalf of the said Consolidated
Rock Hill-Emerald Green Sewer District, as extended be, and it hereby is, authorized to make
such improvements in said district as may be required for the proposed operation thereof,
provided that the required funds for the same are made available or provided for; and it is further

ORDERED, that the entire amount to be expended for such improvements, including,
but not limited to, costs of construction, engineering, administrative, legal and other fees and
expenses, shall be borne solely and entirely by the landowners, namely Catskill Veterinary

Services, LLP, and it is further



ORDERED, that the Town Clerk of the Town of Thompson be, and she hereby is,
authorized and directed to cause a certified copy of this order to be duly recorded in the office of
the Clerk of Sullivan County, in which the Town of Thompson is located, within ten (10) days
after adoption of this order; and it is further

ORDERED, that the Town Clerk be, and he hereby is, authorized and directed to file a
certified copy of this order in the office of the Department of Audit and Control, Albany, New
York, within ten (10) days after the adoption hereof, if so required.

Dated: Monticello, New York
September 2™ | 2025

WILLIAM J. RIEBER, JR., Supervisor

SCOTT S. MACE, Councilman

JOHN A. PAVESE, Councilman

MELINDA S. MEDDAUGH, Councilwoman

RYAN T. SCHOCK, Councilman



SCHEDULE “A”



Consolidated Rock Hill/Emerald Green Sewer District Extension No.3

Beginning at a point of the bounds of Glen Wild Road, County Route 58, being the Northeast corner
of SBL 32.-1-15; Thence

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

N 72°32'00”W a distance of 313.70 feet along the northerly boundary of SBL 32.-1-15t0 a
point; thence

N56°16°00"W a distance of 299.18 feet along the northerly boundary of SBL 32.-1-15t0 a
pont; thence

$23°35°00”W a distance of 14.65 feet along the westerly boundary of SBL 32.-1-15 to a point,
thence

$51°45’00”E a distance of 25.17 feet along the boundary of SBL 32.-1-5 to a point; thence
528°49°00"W a distance of 208.60 feet along the westerly boundary of SBL 32.-1-15toa
point; thence

$40°27°00"W a distance of 107.60 feet along the westerly boundary of SBL 32.-1-15 and SBL
32.-1-16 to a point; thence

N49°33'00"W a distance of 23.00 feet along the boundary of SBL 32.-1-16to a point; thence
$40°27°00”W a distance of 150.00 feet along the westerly boundary of SBL 32.-1-16to a
point, being on the boundary of Rock Hill Drive, Town Road 52; thence

Along the boundary of Rock Hill Drive, Town Road 52, N47°08’00” a distance of 75.00 feet to
a point; thence

N40°27°00”E a distance of 160.00 feet along the boundary of SBL 32.-1-13 to a point; thence
$47°08'00”E a distance of 50 feet to a point, thence

N40°27°00” a distance of 85.00 feet along the easterly boundary of SBL 32.-1-13 to a point;
thence

N29°49'00”E a distance of 185.00 feet along the easterly boundary of SBL 32.-1-13to a
point; thence

N 03°57°00” W a distance of 44.65 feet along the easterly boundary of SBL 32.-1-13 to a point;

thence
N 51°45’15” W a distance of 630.30 feet along the northerly boundary of SBL 32.-1-13toa

point on the common boundary with SBL 32.-1-10; thence

N 16°33°25” E a distance of 782.93 feet along the easterly boundary of SBL 32.-1-10to an
iron road set; thence

§ 74°02'42” E a distance of 662.80 feet along the southerly boundary of SBL 32.-1-26.3 to an
iron road set; thence

S 23°35’00” W 639.86 a distance of 639.86 feet along the westerly boundary of SBL 32.-1-25
to a point; thence

S 85°29°00” E a distance of 299.24 feet along the southerly boundary of SBL 32.-1-25t0 a
point; thence

S 21°57°00” W a distance of 432.76 feet along the westerly boundary of SBL 32.-1-25t0 a
point; thence

$72°32°00” E a distance of 301.80 feet along the southerly boundary of SBL 32.-1-25t0 a
point on the bounds of Glen Wild Road, County Route 58; thence

S 15°00°00” a distance of 75.00 feet along the bounds of Glen Wild Road, County Route 58,
to a point, being the point of beginning. Containing 16.52 acres more or less.



A

MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Master Services Agreement (this “Agreement”) is effective as of ., 2025
(the "Effective Date™) and is entered into by and between Woodhollow Energy Partners LLC, a New York Limited
Liability Company (“WHP”), and [Entity type and jurisdiction] (“Company”).
This Agreement consists of:
« The attached addenda (“Addenda”):

Addendum A: General Terms and Conditions
o Addendum B: SOWP and Pricing
o Addendum C: Preventative Maintenance Scope

Addresses for notices:

WHP Company

Woodhollow Energy Partners LL.C [Insert address for notices)
103 School Street
Lindenhurst NY 11757

Attention:

This Agreement is executed by duly authorized representatives of the parties to be effective as of the Effective
Date.

Woodhollow Energy Partners LLC [Vame of Company]
Signature: Signature:
Printed Name: Printed Name:
Title: Title:
Date Signed: Signature:

Date Signed:

Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date Signed:




ADDENDUM A
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT.

1.1 Services. This Agreement evidences the
parties’ agreement with respect to the provision of
services to be supplied to Company under this
Agreement by WHP (the “Services”). WHP will
provide the Services to Company in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement as
the parties may from time to time agree and specify
in SOWP (as defined in Section 3.1) agreed upon by
WHP and Company. This Agreement will apply to
each such SOWP entered into hereunder.

1.2 Non-Exclusive. This  Agreement is
nonexclusive. Except as expressly set forth herein,
Company may purchase any products and services
from any other vendor, and WHP may provide
services similar to the Services to any other party,
including competitors of Company.

2.  PRICE AND PAYMENT.

2.1  Price. Company will pay WHP for Services
as specified in Exhibit B.

2.2 Invoicing; Payment Terms. Unless
otherwise agreed in Exhibit B or Addendum,
Services will be invoiced on a monthly basis in
arrears. Company will remit payment on each
invoice thirty (30) days following its receipt of such
invoice.

2.2 Taxes. WHP may charge, and Company will
pay, any and all applicable federal, national, state or
local sales or use taxes or value added taxes that
WHP is legally obligated to charge (but excluding
any taxes based on WHP’s net income or franchise
tax).

3. SOWP.

3.1 Defined. “SOWP” means any written order
agreed upon by Company and WHP for the
purchase of Services under this Agreement. If WHP
commences performance under this Agreement in
the absence of an Order, and Company accepts the
Services in whole or part provided or performed by

WHP under such performance, this Agreement will
nevertheless apply, unless the parties agree otherwise in
a writing signed by both parties.

3.2 Acceptance. Other than with respect to SOWP,
which is a part hereof, an SOWP is deemed to have
been accepted and is binding on both parties when
mutually executed and delivered by both parties.

3.3 Change Orders. [f either party proposes
changes to the scope of Services covered hereby (each,
a “Change Request”), the parties will follow the change
procedures specified in this Section 3.3. The party
proposing a Change Request will contact the other party
with a description of the proposed Change Request.
Sunrise will then prepare a proposed change order
hereto in respect of the Change Request in a form
mutually agreeable to the parties (each, a “Change
Order™), for execution by the parties. A Change Order
shall include: (a) the details of the Change Request; (b)
an analysis of the impact of the Change Request on the
Services; and (c¢) the time, materials, and aggregate
costs required to address the Change Request. Neither
party will be held liable for any Change Request
without a Change Order being executed by an
authorized representative of each party.

4. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.

4.1 Services. WHP represents and warrants to
Company the following: (a) the Services will be
performed in a professional and workmanlike manner;
(b) the Services and the Work Product (as defined
below) will not infringe upon, violate or misappropriate
any trademarks, trade secrets, copyrights, patents and
any other intellectual property or proprietary rights in
any country (collectively, “Proprietary Rights™) of any
third party; and (c) all Personnel (as defined below) are
authorized to lawfully perform the Services pursuant to
applicable immigration and work status Laws (as
defined below).

4.2  Authority. Each party represents and warrants,
to the other party that such party has all rights necessary
for (and is not subject to any restriction, penalty,
agreement, commitment, or Law that is violated by) its
(a) execution and delivery of this Agreement, (b)

2.



performance of its obligations under this
Agreement, and (c) granting to the other party all
rights, title, and interests granted under this
Agreement, free and clear of any and all
agreements, liens, pledges, claims, mortgages,
encumbrances, and rights and other interests of any

party.
5. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.,

Each party will comply with all applicable laws,
ordinances, regulations, rules, orders, and other
requirements (including requirements for licenses,
permits,  certifications and  approvals) of
governmental authorities having jurisdiction
(“Laws”) in connection with this Agreement.

6. WORK PRODUCT; LICENSES.

6.1 Retained Intellectual Property. Each party
retains all right, title and interest (including all
Proprietary Rights) in and to its own Retained
Intellectual  Property. “Retained  Intellectual
Property” consists of each party’s: (A) know-how,
concepts, techniques, methodologies, ideas,
templates, software, interfaces, utilities, tools,
copyrights, patent rights, trade secrets, trademarks,
moral rights and all other applicable proprietary and
intellectual property rights that existed prior to the
performance of Services under the applicable
SOWP, (B) all updates, modifications,
improvements, enhancements and derivative works
of the items described in clause (A) that created or
developed by that party for its general commercial
use beyond the scope of this Agreement or the
Services, and ideas, concepts, techniques,
improvements and know-how discovered, that are
either (i) created or developed during the
performance of Services that are of general
application and that are discovered, created or
developed without use, knowledge of, reference to
or based on or derived from the other party’s
business or Confidential Information and do not
constitute Work Product (as defined below), or (ii)
created or developed by WHP for its general
commercial use beyond the scope of this Agreement
or the Services.

6.2 Work Product. “Work Product” as used in
this Agreement shall mean, collectively, any results
of Services or deliverables that WHP delivers
pursuant to SOWP; provided, however, and

notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Work
Product shall not include any and all intellectual
property, including any software, source code, and
related intellectual property, that Supplier owned or
utilized through third party relationships prior to the
commencement of the Services, including but not
limited to infrastructure engineering, construction,
procurement and project management, EVSE charging
and energy management, vehicle fleet charging status
and electric fleet decision support, including WHP
Project / Vendor Management Software, WHP Project
Estimating & Engineering Software.

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR; WHP
PERSONNEL.

7.1  Relationship. WHP will perform the Services
as an independent contractor of Company, and this
Agreement will not be construed to create a partnership,
joint venture, agency, employment, or any other
relationship between WHP and Company. Neither
party will represent itself to be an employee,
representative or agent of the other party. Neither party
will have any authority to enter into any agreement on
the other party’s behalf or in the other party’s name or
otherwise bind the other party to any agreement or
obligation.

7.2 Personnel. WHP will retain: (a) full control
over the manner in which it performs all Services
provided to Company; (b) exclusive control over its
employees, representatives, contractors,
subcontractors, and agents (the “Personnel”); (c)
exclusive control over its labor and employee relations
and its policies relating to wages, hours, working
conditions and other employment conditions; and (d)
exclusive right to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, recall,
promote, discipline, discharge, and adjust grievances
with its Personnel. WHP is solely responsible for all
salaries and other compensation of its Personnel who
provide Services to Company, and for making all
deductions and withholdings from its employees’
salaries and other compensation and paying all
contributions, taxes, and assessments. WHP and
WHP’s Personnel are not entitled to and are not eligible
to participate in any workers’ compensation,
retirement, insurance, stock options, or any other
benefits afforded to employees of Company.

7.3  On-Site Services. To the extent WHP is
performing Services on Company premises or
otherwise accesses or uses such premises, WHP will

3-



abide by and cause its Personnel (including
subcontractors) to abide by all reasonable rules,
restrictions, policies, procedures and guidelines
communicated in writing by Company to WHP.
WHP will be solely responsible for initiating,
maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions
and programs to insure the safe provision or
performance of the Services, and will control,
supervise, and direct its Personnel and the means,
methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures
used.

8. INSURANCE.

WHP will obtain and maintain the following during
the Term:

(A) “Commercial General Liability” insurance,
including products/completed operations, broad
form property damage, contractors’ protective
liability, and broad form blanket contractual,
advertising, and personal injury liability, with limits
of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and
$2,000,000 general aggregate;

(B) “Business Automobile Liability” insurance
(including coverage for all owned, non-owned and
hired autos, and no-fault coverage where applicable)
with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence for bodily injury and property damage
combined; and

(C) “Workers’ Compensation” insurance, including
coverage for all costs, benefits, and liabilities under
workers’ compensation and similar Laws that may
accrue in favor of any person employed by Supplier,
in all states where Supplier provides Services.

9. INDEMNIFICATION.

9.1 Indemnification. WHP will indemnify,
defend and hold harmless Company and its officers,
directors, and employees (collectively, “Company
Indemnified Parties”) against any damages,
liabilities, assessments, losses, costs, and other
expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and
legal expenses) incurred by that Company
Indemnified Party arising from any third-party
claim to the extent such claim relates to:

(A)y WHP’s breach of any of its warranties or
representations in this Agreement;

(B) any gross negligence or willful misconduct of
WHP or the Personnel; or

(C) any personal or bodily injury (including death) or
damage to property caused by WHP or its Personnel in
connection with the provision of the Services.

Company will indemnify, defend and hold harmless
WHP and its officers, directors, and employees
(collectively, “WHP Indemnified Parties”) against any
damages, liabilities, assessments, losses, costs, and
other expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees
and legal expenses) incurred by that WHP Indemnified
Party arising from any third-party claim to the extent
such claim relates to:

(A) Company’s breach of any of its warranties or
representations in this Agreement; or

(B) any gross negligence or willful misconduct of
Company.

9.2 Process. The party seeking indemnification will
give the indemnifying party reasonable notice of each
claim for which it wants indemnity and will also
provide the indemnifying party its reasonable
cooperation in the defense of such claim. An
indemnified party may participate in the defense at its
own expense.

16. CONFIDENTIALITY.

The parties will comply with the terms of the NDA in
connection with this Agreement. In any event, each
party and its representatives (a) will protect and keep
confidential the existence of this Agreement (including
all SOWPs), its terms and conditions and any other
information obtained from the other party in
connection with this Agreement or related to the
Services that is identified as confidential or proprietary
or that, given the nature of such information or the
manner of its disclosure, reasonably should be
considered confidential or proprietary, (b) will use
such information only for the purpose(s) for which it
was originally disclosed and, in any case, only for the
purpose of fulfilling its obligations under this
Agreement, and (c) will return all such information to
the disclosing party promptly upon the termination of
this Agreement. All such information will remain the
disclosing party’s exclusive property, and the receiving
party will have no rights to use such information except

4.



as expressly provided herein.
11. TERM AND TERMINATION.

11.1 Term. The term of this Agreement (the
“Term”) will commence on the Effective Date and,
unless earlier terminated pursuant to this Section 11,
will continue for ten (10) year. Thereafter, this
Agreement will automatically extend for additional
one (I)-year periods unless either party provides
notice to the other party of its desire not to renew at
least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the
then-current Term.

11.2 Termination.

(A) By Company. Company may cancel any or all
SOWP and/or terminate the Agreement in its
entirety immediately upon WHP’s material breach,
if such breach is incapable of being cured, and, if
such breach is capable of being cured, WHP’s
failure to cure such breach within thirty (30) days
after receipt of written notice to WHP specifying the
breach in reasonable detail, including any
permanent, long-term or temporary suspension or
interruption of the Services by WHP or any of its
Personnel due to any cause, under any SOWP
executed or issued by any Company by providing
written notice to WHP specifying the breach in
reasonable detail.

(B) By WHP. WHP may cancel any or all SOWP
and/or terminate the Agreement in its entirety upon
Company’s material breach under such SOWP or
this Agreement, if such breach is incapable of being
cured, and, if such breach is capable of being cured,
Company’s failure to cure such breach within thirty
(30) days after receipt of written notice to
Company specifying the breach in reasonable detail.

(C) For Convenience. SOWP may be terminated
by either party for convenience to the extent
expressly contemplated by such SOWP. At any time
that there is no outstanding SOWP hereunder, either
party may terminate this Agreement in its entirety
by providing written notice of such termination
(specifying the effective date of such cancellation or
termination) to the other party and such termination
will be effective no less than thirty (30) days after
such written notice.

(D) For Insolvency. Either party may terminate this

Agreement: (a) upon the filing of any voluntary petition
by the other party under any bankruptcy Laws; (b) upon
the filing of any involuntary petition against the other
party under any bankruptcy Laws that is not dismissed
within sixty (60) days after filing; (c) upon any
appointment of a receiver for all or a substantial portion
of the other party’s business or operations; or (d) upon
any assignment of all or substantially all the assets of
the other party for the benefit of creditors.

11.3 Effect of Termination. All payment liabilities
accruing up to the expiration of the Term or any
termination of this Agreement shall survive such date.

12. EXCLUSIONS, DISCLAIMERS AND
LIMITATIONS.

12.1 Exclusion of Damages. IN NO EVENT
SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE UNDER ANY
THEORY OF LIABILITY FOR ANY INDIRECT,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL
DAMAGES OF ANY KIND (INCLUDING,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY SUCH DAMAGES
ARISING FROM BREACH OF CONTRACT OR
WARRANTY OR FROM NEGLIGENCE OR
STRICT LIABILITY), INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION, LOSS OF PROFITS, REVENUE, OR
DATA, OR USE, OR FROM ANY DEFECT, ERROR,
OR MALFUNCTION OF THE SERVICES OR THE
WORK, EVEN IF THE OTHER PARTY OR ANY
OTHER PERSON HAS BEEN ADVISED OR
SHOULD KNOW OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH
DAMAGES.

12.2 Disclaimer of Warranties. EXCEPT AS
EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN, NEITHER
PARTY MAKES, AND EACH  PARTY
SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS, ALL EXPRESS AND
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF EVERY KIND
RELATING TO THE SERVICES AND THE WORK
PRODUCT AND USE OF THE SERVICES AND
THE WORK PRODUCT (INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION, ACTUAL AND IMPLIED
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY,
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND
NON-INFRINGEMENT), AS WELL AS ANY
WARRANTIES THAT THE SERVICES OR THE
WORK (OR ANY ELEMENTS THEREOF) WILL
ACHIEVE A PARTICULAR RESULT, OR WILL BE
ERROR-FREE.

12.3 Limitation of Liability. EITHER PARTY’S

-5-



LIABILITY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER UNDER A
CONTRACT, TORT, OR OTHER THEORY OF
LIABILITY, FOR ANY AND ALL CLAIMS OR
TYPES OF DAMAGES WILL NOT EXCEED
THE TOTAL FEES PAID HEREUNDER BY
COMPANY TO WHP DURING THE 12
MONTHS IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE
EVENT GIVING RISE TO LIABILITY.

13. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS.

13.1 Notices. Notices under this Agreement are
sufficient if given by nationally recognized
overnight courier service, certified mail (return
receipt requested), facsimile with electronic
confirmation, or personal delivery to the other party
at the address above the party’s signature line.
Notice is effective: (a) when delivered personally,
(b) three business days after sending by certified
mail, (c) on the business day after sending by a
nationally recognized courier service, or (d) on the
business day after sending by facsimile with
electronic confirmation to the sender.

13.2 Cumulative Rights. The rights and
remedies of the parties under this Agreement are
cumulative, and either party may enforce any of its
rights or remedies under this Agreement or other
rights and remedies available to it at law or in

equity.

13.3 Assignment. Neither party may assign any
part or all of this Agreement without the other
party’s prior written consent, which shall not be
unreasonably withheld, subject to the terms below.
Any attempt by a party to assign in violation of this
Section 13.3 is void in each instance. All the terms
and conditions of this Agreement will be binding
upon, will inure to the benefit of, and will be
enforceable by the parties and their respective
successors and permitted assigns. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, either party may assign this
Agreement to any purchaser of all or substantially
all of such party’s equity interests or assets, or in
connection with any merger, reorganization,
consolidation, change of control, or similar
transaction.

13.4 Waivers and Remedies. No waiver of any
breach of any provision of the Agreement will
constitute a waiver of any prior, concurrent, or

subsequent breach of the same or any other provisions
hereof, and no waiver will be effective unless made in
writing and signed by an authorized representative of
the waiving party. The failure of either party to enforce
any provision of this Agreement will not constitute a
waiver of the party’s rights to subsequently enforce the
provision._

13.5 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement
or the application thereof to any person, entity, or
circumstance will at any time or to any extent be
determined to be invalid or unenforceable under any
provision of applicable Law, to the full extent the
applicable Law may be waived, it is hereby waived. To
the extent such Law cannot be waived, the invalid or
unenforceable provision will be replaced by a valid
provision which comes closest to the intentions of the
parties to this Agreement.

13.6 Governing Law; Venue; Jurisdiction. This
Agreement is governed by the substantive Laws of the
state of California, excluding its conflicts of law
provisions. The United Nations Convention on
Contracts for the International Sale of Goods will not
apply to this Agreement. Any dispute arising under, in
connection with, or incident to this Agreement or about
its interpretation will be resolved exclusively in the
state or federal courts located in Los Angeles County,
California. Each party irrevocably submits to those
courts’ venue and jurisdiction and waives all defenses
of lack of personal jurisdiction and forum non
conveniens. A final judgment in any such suit or action
may be enforced in other jurisdictions by suit on the
judgment or in any other manner provided by Law.

13.7 Construction. The section headings of this
Agreement are for convenience only and have no
interpretive value. Whenever the singular number is
used in this Agreement and when required by the
context, the same will include the plural and vice versa,
and the masculine gender will include the feminine and
neuter genders and vice versa. The words “include,”
“includes” and “including” will be deemed to be
followed by “without limitation.” The word “will” shall
be construed to have the same meaning and effect as the
word “shall.” The word “or” shall not be exclusive. The
phrase “to the extent” shall mean the degree to which a
subject or other matter extends, and such phrase shall
not simply mean “if.” Where a word is defined herein,
references to the singular shall include references to the
plural and vice versa. All references to “$” and dollars
shall be deemed to refer to United States currency

-6-



unless otherwise specifically provided. All
references to a day or days shall be deemed to refer
to a calendar day or calendar days, as applicable,
unless otherwise specifically provided.

13.8 Entire Agreement; Precedence; An
amendment. This Agreement, together with the
NDA, all Addenda and other attachments, and all
SOWPs, which are incorporated in and made a part
of this Agreement, constitute the entire agreement
between the parties with respect to the subject
matter hereof and supersedes any previous or
contemporaneous oral or written agreements,
understandings, request for proposals or quotations,
and discussions regarding such subject matter. In
the event that any conflict exists between the terms
and conditions of this Agreement and any other
terms and conditions attached to or incorporated
into this Agreement as an Addendum or other
attachment that cannot be resolved on the face of
such documents, then the terms of the Addendum or
attachment, as the case may be, will control with
respect to the subject matter of the applicable
Addendum. This Agreement may be amended or
modified only by a written instrument signed by a
duly authorized agent of each party.

13.9 Counterparts. This Agreement (or any
Addendum or SOWP) may be executed by facsimile
or electronic transmission (including in portable
document format or by electronic signature) and in
counterparts, each of which (including signature
pages) will be deemed an original, but all of which
together will constitute one and the same
instrument.



ADDENDUM B

Scope of Services and Maintenance / Pricing — EV Charging Stations

1. Active Charger Management

1.1 Continuous monitoring of all EV charging stations to ensure operational readiness and maximize
uptime. :

1.2 Real-time and scheduled status checks, including remote diagnostics and control.

1.3 Application of firmware and software updates to maintain compatibility, improve performance, and
ensure compliance with regulatory or manufacturer requirements.

2. Charging Portal and User Interface

2.1 Management and upkeep of the web-based and/or mobile charging portal, including user account

administration, payment processing integration, session reporting, and system analytics.

2.2 Implementation of enhancements, bug fixes, and interface optimizations to ensure an efficient and
user-friendly experience.

2.3 Security management, including encryption, authentication protocols, and protection of user data.

3. Software and Hardware Troubleshooting

3.1 Remote diagnosis and resolution of charging station faults, communication errors, and performance

anomalies.
3.2 Onsite troubleshooting where remote resolution is not possible, coordinated with the Client and/or

manufacturer as necessary.

5. Utility Meter and Account Management

5.1 Active management of utility meters associated with EV charging operations, including account
setup, billing oversight, and coordination with the utility provider,
5.2 Monitoring of consumption and billing data to ensure accuracy and identify anomalies.

6. Demand Response and Load Management

6.1 Implementation of demand response strategies to mitigate peak demand charges, including
dynamic load balancing and scheduled charging operations.

-8-



6.2 Integration with utility demand response programs where available.
6.3 Development of charging schedules and protocols to optimize usage against time-of-use rates.

7. Energy Supply and Procurement

7.1 Evaluation of potential utility supply contracts or third-party energy procurement opportunities to
reduce electricity supply costs.
7.2 Negotiation assistance, analysis, and ongoing monitoring of energy supply agreements.

8. Reporting and Performance Metrics

8.1 Provision of monthly performance reports, including uptime percentage, session usage data, fault
logs, and maintenance actions.

8.2 Annual review of system performance with recommendations for optimization, upgrades, or
process improvements.

9. General Provisions

9.1 All services shall be performed in compliance with applicable safety codes, manufacturer
specifications, and relevant industry standards.

9.2 The Service Provider shall coordinate with the Client to schedule maintenance activities to
minimize disruption to EV station availability.

10. Pricing

5 cents/KW used with 3% annual increase at each anniversary. Billed Monthly Based
on Usage.



ADDENDUM C

Preventative Maintenance Scope

1. Scope of Services

1.1 Service Provider Obligations:

» Service Provider agrees to perform preventative maintenance services for the EV charging stations
located at [Client's Address or Specific Location], as described in this Agreement.

e Services will include quarterly, semi-annual, and annual maintenance tasks as detailed in Section 2.

* Service Provider will provide all necessary tools, equipment, and personnel to perform these services
efficiently and professionally.

1.2 Client Obligations:

« Client agrees to provide Service Provider with access to the site and necessary facilities during agreed-
upon times for maintenance purposes.

¢ Client agrees to notify the Service Provider promptly of any issues or concerns regarding the EV
charging stations that may require additional attention.

2. Maintenance Schedule & Tasks

2.1 Quarterly Maintenance Tasks:

» Visual Inspection: Inspect charging cables, connectors, and housings for wear and tear.
* Functional Test: Perform a basic charging test to ensure the station is operational.
e Cleaning: Clean the charging station, including the screen, connectors, and surrounding area.

2.2 Semi-Annual Maintenance Tasks:

» Electrical Inspection: Check all electrical connections for security and corrosion,
» Safety Checks: Test emergency shutoff features and inspect for overheating.
* Software Update: Check for available software or firmware updates and install as needed.

2.3 Annual Maintenance Tasks:

* In-Depth Inspection: Detailed examination of internal components, wiring, and circuits,
o Calibration: Test and recalibrate energy meters and other measurement devices.
* Comprehensive System Testing: Perform a full system diagnostic and communication system test.

3. Decommissioning & Repair Procedures

-10-



* Notification: The Service Provider will inform stakeholders of any scheduled downtime.
» Safety Precautions: De-energize the station and secure the area before repairs.
* Recommissioning: Re-energize and conduct a full operational test after repairs.

4. Documentation & Reporting

¢ Record Keeping: Service Provider will maintain detailed records of all maintenance activities.
e Reporting: Service Provider will provide regular reports summarizing maintenance activities and
recommendations.

-11-



Gaa ks
ENERGY
PARTNERS

WHE

103 School St; Lindenhurst, New York 11757

(866) 444-7101 / info@woodhollowdesigns.com

Renewable Energy Tax Credit Professional Services Agreement

This Consulting Services Agreement (this “Agreement”) is effective as of , 2025
(the "Effective Date”) and is entered into by and between Woodhollow Energy Partners LLC, a New
York Limited Liability Company (“WHP”), and Town of Thompson (“Client”).

1. Project Assessment and Strategic Planning

o Evaluate your planned renewable energy projects (EV charging, solar and battery backup).

« Conduct feasibility analysis to determine applicable tax incentives (e.g., Investment Tax Credit
(ITC), Production Tax Credit (PTC), Modified Accelerated Cost-Recovery System (MACRS),
and state-level programs).

« Develop a strategic roadmap to align tax credit utilization with overall project finance goals.

2. Tax Credit Eligibility Analysis

« Identify all applicable federal, state, and local tax credits, grants, rebates, and incentives.

« Determine eligibility criteria based on project location, size, technology, and ownership
structure.

+ Analyze the impact of prevailing wage and apprenticeship requirements under the Inflation
Reduction Act (IRA) and other recent legislation.

3. Financial Modeling & ROI Optimization

o Build detailed financial models incorporating tax equity, depreciation, and credit monetization.

o Estimate ROI scenarios with and without incentives.

« Recommend optimal ownership and financing structures (e.g., direct ownership, leasing, tax
equity partnerships) for credit maximization.




ENERGY
PARTNERS

WHE

103 School St, Lindenhurst, New York 11757

(866) 444-7101 / info@woodhollowdesigns.com

4. Documentation & Compliance Support

Assist with the preparation and filing of necessary documentation to claim tax credits and
comply with relevant regulations.

Provide audit support and maintain thorough documentation for IRS and other regulatory
agencies.

Ensure compliance with IRS guidelines, Treasury regulations, and labor standards tied to tax
credits.

5. Tax Credit Monetization & Financing Support

Support in structuring tax equity deals, transfer/sale of tax credits (if applicable), and
syndication.

Connect with and advise on potential tax credit investors or brokers.

Assist in due diligence and contract negotiation with third-party financiers.

6. Ongoing Advisory and Legislative Monitoring

Provide updates and strategic guidance on changes in tax legislation and regulatory

frameworks.
Advise on amendments or modifications to the project scope to maintain or enhance eligibility

for incentives.
Conduct periodic reviews of project performance relative to initial tax credit and ROI

projections.

7. Fees

Our Fee for Federal and State tax credit consulting services scope is 30% of calculated and
received tax credits. Town of Tompson will receive cash credit from the IRS under Elective
Pay. Estimated Cash Tax Credit = $48,000.00



ENERGY
PARTNERS

103 School St, Lindenhurst, New York 11757

(866) 444-7101 / info@woodhollowdesigns.com

Deliverables

» Tax credit eligibility and registration with the IRS

« ROI optimization financial model
« Strategic tax incentive roadmap

« Completed forms and documentation for credit claims
o Compliance and audit-ready documentation package

o Periodic legislative update reports

+ Follow ups with IRS on Cash Tax Credits claimed under Elective Pay

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.

Client

Company:

By:

Name:

Title

Date:

WHP

Company:

By:

Name: _Russell Kadirov

Title _ Member

Date:




ROBERT GREEN TRUCK DIVISION
ROUTE 17 EAST EXIT 107, P.O. BOX 8002
ROCKHILL, N.Y. 12775
PHONE 845-794-0300 FAX 845-794-0295

rev-04/01/08

AGh

ONONDAGA CTY #0011142 STATEWIDE PIGGY BACK CONTRACT TRUCKS TRUCK EQUIPMENT

THOMPSON WATER, TOWN OF 8/28/2025

128 ROCK RIDGE DRIVE

MONTICELLO, NY 12701

MIKE MESSENGER
MMESSENGER@TOWNOFTHOMPSON.COM

BASE MODEL LESS 28.5%/FACTORY OPTIONS LESS 10%/ NON OEM LESS 50%
COLOR WHITE

PH 845 794-5280/ CELL 845 796-8409
FX
VN 54DCDW1DXRS220586

[ RS GREEN
DTY UNIT PRICE[NET PRICE] TOTAL

1]2024 CHEVROLET 4500 HG LCF 150" WB CAB/CHASSIS $59,200.00 | $42,328.00 | $42,328.00
1[PORT TO DEALER DESTINATION CHARGE $1,825.00 | $1,825.00
1[OCEAN FREIGHT SURCHARGE $4,275.00 | $4,275.00
1|DL8-OUTSIDE HEATED MIRRORS $800.00 | $720.00 |  $720.00
1[108-BLUE TOOTH XM RADIO, NAVIGATION, REAR VISION CAMERA $1520.00] $1,368.00] $1,368.00
1[IX2-DOME/BODY LAMP SWITCH IN CAB $30.00 $27.00 $27.00
1{L8T-6.6 LITER GASOLINE V8 ENGINE
1|MTE-FIRE EXTINGUISHER/REFLECTOR KIT $90.00 $81.00 $87.00
1|MYD-6 SPEED AUTOMATIC TRANS
1|TR9-LED LIGHTING UPGRADE $450.00]  $405.00] _ $405.00
1[UZF-BACK UP ALARM $115.00]  $103.50] _ $103.50
1|CATCLAMP-CATALYTIC CONVERTER LOCKING DEVICE $2.400.00] $1,200.00] $1,200.00
1|RPAF1666W ROCKPORT 16' X 96" W WORKPORT VAN/UTILITY BODY $57,370.00] $28,685.00] $28,685.00
1| FRB COMPOSITE WALLS, COMPARTMENTS WITH SHELVING,
1]_INSIDE LED CARGO LAMPS, POOCHED STEP BUMPER WITH KICKPLATE,
1| TRANSLUCENT ROOF, REAR SWING DOORS, 2 REAR GRAB HANDLES.
1| EXTERIOR LED FLOOD LIGHT CURBSIDE CENTER
1|_ELECTRIC MASTER LOCK POWER DOOR SYSTEM FOR BODY
1| COMPARTMENT LIGHTING,
1| ALUMINUM LADDER RACK WITH CATWALKS
1]_CLASS 3 RECEIVER HITCH AND 7 WIRE FLATPIN TRAILER PLUG

SUB TOTAL $81,017.50

FOB MONTICELLO, NY DELIVERY
] FED EXCISE TAX
TOTAL $87,017.50




TO JOIN ZOOM MEETING: THIS MEETING WILL BE STREAMED LIVE
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83032452642 ON ZOOM TO JOIN: PLEASE SEE OUR TOWN
Meeting ID: 830 3245 2642 WEBSITE: WWW.THOMPSONNY.GOV

1-646-558-8656

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Town Board of the Town of Thompson
will hold a public hearing on the 2025 special district assessment roll on
October 7, 2025 at 7:00 pm at the Town Hall to hear and consider objections which may
be made to the roll. The tax records of the Town indicate you own property which is
located in one or more of the following special assessment districts:

SEWER DISTRICTS: Adelaar, Harris Consolidated, Klamesha Consolidated,
Melody Lake, Rock HIll Emerald Green Consolidated & Sackett Lake

WATER DISTRICTS: Adelaar, Cold Spring, Dillon, Klamesha, Lucky Lake & Melody Lake

This hearing is to discuss assessed points only, it is not in regard to specific rates.

The Special Assessment Roll and Schedule of Points are available for inspection by
the public during normal work hours of 8:30 am thru 4:30 pm in the Office of the Town
Clerk at the Town Hall and are available on the town’s website: www.thompsonny.gov

BY ORDER OF THE TOWN BOARD - Town of Thompson - Marilee Calhoun, Town Clerk

g

— TZZE-T0LTT YHOA MaN ‘Oj[SORUOW
Oﬁiﬁﬁ;uo IA}I N 2 2IN0Y 2115 Z50%

divd
o8rysod SN
PIS H0§-21d




%9

Town Supervisor Town Board Members
William J. Rieber, Jr.  Deputy Supervisor Melinda Meddaugh
Scott Mace

John Pavese
Ryan Schock

August 27, 2025

Bills over $5,000.00

We are requesting permission to pay Nugent & Haeussler, P.C. for the balance due on the
Town audited financial statements as well as the Justic Court required report

Nugent & Haeussler, P.C. Invoice #242992 $15,000.00
Nugent & Haeussler, P.C. Invoice #242994 $4,000.00

APPROVED BY TOWN BOARD

This institution is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

4052 State Route 42, Monticello, NY 12701 Ph: 845.794.2500 Fax: 845.794.8600 ThompsonNY.Gov



O
X 15\@9 Nugent & Haeussler, P.C.
' Certified Public Accountants
101 Bracken Road
Montgomery, NY 12549
Phone: (845)457-1100 Fax: (845)457-1160

Invoice Date: 08/15/2025
Invoice Number: 242992
TOWN OF THOMPSON Client Number: THOMI10373.001

4052 ROUTE 42
MONTICELLO, NY 12701-3221

For professional services rendered

Preparation of Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December
31, 2024. (830,000 Less Progress Bill of $15,000)
§___15.000.00

A 1240400

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS
A CHARGE OF 1% PER MONTH WILL BE MADE ON UNPAID BALANCES OVER 30 DAYS
A FEE OF 3.5% WILL BE APPLIED TO ALL CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS



-

access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Nugent & Haeussler, P.C.
personnel.  Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the
aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information
contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report
release date or for any additional period requested by the New York State Office of the State Comptroller
for Audit. If we are aware that a federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an
audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the
audit documentation.

Justin B. Wood, CPA is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and
signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. We expect to begin our audit on
approximately May 19, 2025,

Our fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report
reproduction, word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross
fee, including expenses, will be $30,000 for the financial statement audit. Our standard hourly rates vary
according to the degree of responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to
your audit. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your persornel and the assumption that
unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is
necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate hefore we incur the additional costs.

Reporting

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Town of Thompson’s financial statements.
Our report will be addressed (o the Supervisor and Members of the Board of the Town of Thompson.
Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the
results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify
our opinions, add a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditor’s
report, or if necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will
discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are
unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we
may withdraw from this engagement.

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial
statemients and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by
Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will
state (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and
compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance, The
report will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. If during our audit we become
aware that Town of Thompson is subject to an audit requirement that is no encompassed in the terms of this

Nugent & Haeussler, P.C.



5{ )% Nugent & Haeussler, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
101 Bracken Road
Montgomery, NY 12549
Phone: (845) 457-1100 Fax: (845)457-1160

Invoice Date: 08/15/2025
Inveice Number: 242994
TOWN OF THOMPSON JUSTICE COURT Client Number: THOM10373.002

4052 ROUTE 42
MONTICELLO, NY 12701-3221

For professional services rendered

Preparation of Agreed-Upon Procedures Report related to the operation,
internal controls and compliance of the Justice Court for the year ended
December 31, 2024.
$ 4.000.00

A 1280 400

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS
A CHARGE OF 1% PER MONTH WILL BE MADE ON UNPAID BALANCES OVER 30 DAYS
A FEE OF 3.5% WILL BE APPLIED TO ALL CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS



2-

* You fail to provide requested written representations, or we conclude that there is sufficient
doubt about the competence, integrity, ethical values, or diligence of those providing the written
representations, or we conclude that the written representations provided are otherwise not
reliable,

¢ We determine that the description of the procedures performed or the corresponding findings
are misleading in the circumstances of the engagement,

* We determine that restrictions on the performance of procedures are not appropriate.

An agreed-upon procedures engagement is not designed to detect instances of fraud or noncompliance with
laws or regulations; however, should any such matters come to our attention, we will communicate them in
accordance with professional standards and applicable law. In addition, if, in connection with this
engagement, matters come to our attention that contradict the books and records of the Town of Thompson
Justice Court, we will communicate such matters to you,

You are responsible for the books and records of the Town of Thompson Justice Court. In addition, you are
responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which you or the appropriate party are
aware that is relevant to the performance of the agreed-upon procedures on the subject matter, (2) additional
information that we may request from the appropriate party for the purpose of performing the agreed-upon
procedures, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to
obtain evidence relating to performing those procedures.

At the conclusion of our engagement, we will require certain written representations in the form of a
representation letter from management that, among other things, will confirm management’s responsibility

for the books and records in accordance with Appendices #8 and #10 of the Handbook for Town and Village
Justices and Court Clerks.

Justin B. Wood, CPA is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and
signing the report or authorizing another individual to sign it.

Our fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report
reproduction, word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross
fee, including expenses, will not exceed $4,000. Qur standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of
responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your agreed upon procedure.
The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected
circumstances will not be encountered during the agreed upon procedure. If significant additional time is
necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs.

We appreciate the opportunity to assist you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant
terms of our engagement, If you have any questions, please let us know, If you agree with the terms of our
engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us. If the need for
additional procedures arises, or the procedures need to be modified, our agreement with you will need to be
revised. It is customary for us to enumerate these revisions in an addendum to this letter. If additional
specified parties of the report are added, we will consider whether they need to acknowledge in writing their
agreement with the procedures performed or to be performed and their acknowledgment that the procedures
are appropriate for their purposes.

Nugent & Haeussler, P.C.



Supervisor WILLIAM J. RIEBER, JR. Yes [X INo[ ]
Councilman SCOTT S. MACE Yes [X ]No | ]
Councilman JOHN A. PAVESE Yes [X ]No[ ]
Councilwoman MELINDA S. MEDDAUGH Yes [X I No|[ ]
Councilman RYAN T. SCHOCK Yes[ ]No[ JABSENT

3) APPROVE CONTRACT WITH SULLIVAN COUNTY SPCA FOR DOG SHELTER
SERVICES (2025)
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 89 of the Year 2025.

Resolved, that the Town Board of the Town of Thompson hereby approve and authorize
the Town Supervisor’s execution of the agreement between the Town of Thompson and
the Sullivan County SPCA for the period beginning September 1!, 2024 through August
31%t, 2025 for the purpose of dog kenneling/shelter services. Further Be It Resolved, .
that a copy of said agreement shall be kept on file in the Town Clerk’s Office.

Motion by: Councilwoman Meddaugh Seconded by: Councilman Pavese
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Pavese, Meddaugh and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Schock

4) APPROVE ENGAGEMENT LETTERS WITH NUGENT & HAEUSSLER, P.C.,
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FOR PROFESSIONAL AUDITING SERVICES
FOR TOWN & JUSTICE COURT (FYE 12/31/2024)

The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 90 of the Year 2025.

Resolved, that the engagement letters of agreement from the accounting firm of Nugent
& Haeussler, P.C. Certified Public Accountants (Auditors for the Town) hereby be
approved for 2025 Accounting/Auditing Services (FYE 12/31/2024) for both the Town
and Justice Court at a fee not to exceed $38,000.00. Further Be It Resolved, that the
Town Supervisor hereby be authorized to execute said agreement letters as presented.

Moved by: Councilwoman Meddaugh Seconded by: Councilman Mace
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Pavese, Meddaugh and Mace
Nays 0

Absent 1 Schock

5) DISCUSS REVISION TO RESOLUTION NO. 167 OF THE YEAR 2024
REGARDING HOURLY RATE
The Following Resolution Was Duly Adopted: Res. No. 91 of the Year 2025,

Resolved, that the Town Board of the Town of Thompson hereby authorize that
Resolution No. 167 of the Year 2024 adopted on April 279, 2024 hereby be revised to
correct the hourly rate of Arden “Lod” Brasington from $19.16 to $17.23 as originally
budgeted and compensated for at the 2024 Seasonal Part-Time Laborer Rate.
Moved by: Councilman Pavese Seconded by: Councilwoman Meddaugh
Vote: Ayes 4 Rieber, Pavese, Meddaugh and Mace

Town Board Meeting
January 21, 2025
Page 6 of 12



Monticello Fire Department
150th Anniversary Celebration

1875 - 2025

Join us as we celebrate 150 years of
dedicated service to the community!
Featuring the 96th Annual SCVFA Parade
Saturday, September 6th, 2025
Step-off at 2:00 PM RAIN OR SHINE

After the Parade, head to Somerville Field for:
. Food & Beverages (available for purchase)
. Free Children's Activities
. Parade Trophy Awards

. Spectacular Fireworks Display

Don’t miss out on this historic celebration and family-friendly fun!

Come celebrate with us!

Monticello Fire Department - Serving the
community since 1875



